

NOUZE

State of West Virginia Department of Administration Purchasing Division 2019 Washington Street East Post Office Box 50130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for Quotation

RFQ NUMBER DEFK9025

ADDRESS CORRESPONDENCE TO ATTENTION OF JOHN ABBOTT 304-558-2544

SHIP

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

RFQ COPY TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

Carpenter Reclamation P.O. Box 13015 Sissonville WV 25360

04/02/	20.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0	/EH	IMS OF SAI	E	SHIP VIA		FO.B.		FREIGHT TERMS
BID OPENING DATE:		05/14/	2009			RID O	PENING TIME	0.3	:30PM
LINE	QUAN		UOP	CAT.	ITEM NUMBEI		UNITPRICE	0 1	AMOUNT
				NO.			ONITYTHOL		AWOUNT
001	EROSIO	1	LS ROL S	·	988-14 ES	Z	HODENDUM #	\$1	253,760.00
	MENT NI EROSIO	ECESSA N AT T	RY TO HE GA	REPA LLAGH	IR THE STOR ER TUNNEL (M WATE	S, AND EQUI R AND SLOPE 7 TUNNEL) F CIFICATIONS	OR	
	MANDAT	ORY ON	-SITE	PRE-	EXIT 7 HWY. 8 CENTER	HER TU 4, PAI 3 (MEM FOR N	:30 PM NNEL, I77 SI NT CREEK, C ORIAL TUNNEI ATIONAL RE- ING CENTER)	TY.	
	PLANS /	AND SP	ECIFI	CATIO	304-342	-1400	TA & ASSOC. 0101-08-028	B 3	RECEIVED 19 MAY 21 AM 10: 24
	TION FOR REQUIRESUBMIT THE BII MUST BEOF THE CLE 1D;	IRGINI DR A P ES EAC AT THE D. THE E SIGNE VENDO HIT THE	UBLIC H VEN E SAM ENCL ED AN R'S C TER 2 E SIG	IMPR DOR T E TIM OSED D SUB OMPLI OF NED DI	DVEMENT CON HAT SUBMITS E AN AFFIDA DRUG-FREE W MITTED WITH ANCE WITH TO THE WEST VIO RUG-FREE WOO N DISQUALIF	STRUCT A BID VIT OF ORKPLAD THE B HE PROV RGINIA RKPLACI ICATION	T: ANY SOLIC ION CONTRACT FOR THE WOR COMPLIANCE CE AFFIDAVIT ID AS EVIDEN VISIONS OF A CODE. FAILU E AFFIDAVIT N OF SUCH BI	CITA- T RK TO WIT T NCE ARTI- JRE WITH	W PURCHASING DIVISION
GNATURE /	, <i>A</i>		‡.	SEE HEV	ERSE SIDE FOR TERM! TELS			DATE	-10,110
TLE CHILL	ly (l	pene		103		104-78	84-1115		5/21109
Presid	fint	/ -	550	6754	73		ADDRESS CH	IANGES	TO BE NOTED ABOVE

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS REQUEST FOR QUOTATION (RFQ) AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

Style my War.

- 1. Awards will be made in the best interest of the State of West Virginia.
- 2. The State may accept or reject in part, or in whole, any bid.
- 3. All quotations are governed by the West Virginia Code and the Legislative Rules of the Purchasing Division.
- 4. Prior to any award, the apparent successful vendor must be properly registered with the Purchasing Division and have paid the required \$125 fee.
- 5. All services performed or goods delivered under State Purchase Order/Contracts are to be continued for the term of the Purchase Order/Contracts, contingent upon funds being appropriated by the Legislature or otherwise being made available. In the event funds are not appropriated or otherwise available for these services or goods, this Purchase Order/Contract becomes void and of no effect after June 30.
- 6. Payment may only be made after the delivery and acceptance of goods or services.
- 7. Interest may be paid for late payment in accordance with the West Virginia Code.
- 8. Vendor preference will be granted upon written request in accordance with the West Virginia Code.
- 9. The State of West Virginia is exempt from federal and state taxes and will not pay or reimburse such taxes.
- 10. The Director of Purchasing may cancel any Purchase Order/Contract upon 30 days written notice to the seller.
- 11. The laws of the State of West Virginia and the *Legislative Rules* of the Purchasing Division shall govern all rights and duties under the Contract, including without limitation the validity of this Purchase Order/Contract.
- 12. Any reference to automatic renewal is hereby deleted. The Contract may be renewed only upon mutual written agreement of the parties.
- 13. BANKRUPTCY: In the event the vendor/contractor files for bankruptcy protection, this Contract may be deemed null and void, and terminated without further order.
- 14. HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM: The West Virginia State Government HIPAA Business Associate Addendum (BAA), approved by the Attorney General, and available online at the Purchasing Division's web site (http://www.state.wv.us/admin/purchase/vrc/hipaa.htm) is hereby made part of the agreement. Provided that, the Agency meets the definition of a Cover Entity (45 CFR §160.103) and will be disclosing Protected Health Information (45 CFR §160.103) to the vendor.
- 15. WEST VIRGINIA ALCOHOL & DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ACT: If this Contract constitutes a public improvement construction contract as set forth in Article 1D, Chapter 21 of the West Virginia Code ("The West Virginia Alcohol and Drug-Free Workplace Act"), then the following language shall hereby become part of this Contract: "The contractor and its subcontractors shall implement and maintain a written drug-free workplace policy in compliance with the West Virginia Alcohol and Drug-Free Workplace Act, as set forth in Article 1D, Chapter 21 of the West Virginia Code. The contractor and its subcontractors shall provide a sworn statement in writing, under the penalties of perjury, that they maintain a valid drug-free work place policy in compliance with the West Virginia and Drug-Free Workplace Act. It is understood and agreed that this Contract shall be cancelled by the awarding authority if the Contractor: 1) Fails to implement its drug-free workplace policy; 2) Fails to provide information regarding implementation of the contractor's drug-free workplace policy at the request of the public authority; or 3) Provides to the public authority false information regarding the contractor's drug-free workplace policy."

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

- 1. Use the quotation forms provided by the Purchasing Division.
- **2. SPECIFICATIONS:** Items offered must be in compliance with the specifications. Any deviation from the specifications must be clearly indicated by the bidder. Alternates offered by the bidder as **EQUAL** to the specifications must be clearly defined. A bidder offering an alternate should attach complete specifications and literature to the bid. The Purchasing Division may waive minor deviations to specifications.
- 3. Complete all sections of the quotation form.
- 4. Unit prices shall prevail in case of discrepancy.
- 5. All quotations are considered F.O.B. destination unless alternate shipping terms are clearly identified in the quotation.
- **6. BID SUBMISSION:** All quotations must be delivered by the bidder to the office listed below prior to the date and time of the bid opening. Failure of the bidder to deliver the quotations on time will result in bid disqualifications: Department of Administration, Purchasing Division, 2019 Washington Street East, P.O. Box 50130, Charleston, WV 25305-0130



>mZDOR

RFQ COPY

TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division
2019 Washington Street East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston WW 25305 0130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for Quotation

RFQ NUMBER **DEFK9025** PAGE

ADDRESS CORRESPONDENCE TO ATTENTION OF

JOHN ABBOTT

304-558-2544 DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES

OH-P-HO

JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

DATE PRIN	TED	TEA	IMS OF SALE	SHIP	VIA	F.O.B.	FREIGHT TERMS
04/02/							
BID OPENING DATE:		05/14/	belocks and the part and accommodated		BID	OPENING TIME	01:30PM
LINE	QUAI	NTITY	UOP CAT.	ITEM NU	IMBER	UNIT PRICE	AMOUNT
	WITHIN IS REC	XXXX EIVED. ED PUR	CALENDAR UNLESS	DAYS AFTER OTHERWISE	R THE NO SPECIFI	O BE PERFORMED TICE TO PROCEED ED, THE FULLY ERED NOTICE TO	*
	RIGHT NOTICE SUPPLI	TO CAN TO TH ED ARE HE SPE	CEL THIS E VENDOR OF AN IN	CONTRACT :	IMMEDIAT TERIALS ALITY OR	ING RESERVES TH ELY UPON WRITTE OR WORKMANSHIP DO NOT CONFORM CONTRACT	N
	THE HI RATES TO WES	GHER O AS EST T VIRG	F THE U.S ABLISHED INIA CODE	DEPARTME	ENT OF L HA COUN F, SEQ.	ACTOR SHALL PAY ABOR MINIMUM WA TY, PURSUANT (PREVAILING	1
	INTERE REQUIR OR IN	ST FOR ED BY ANY AM	PAYMENTS STATE LAW ERICAN IN	DUE (EXCI	PT FOR D IN TH ARCHIT	RBITRATION OR ANY INTEREST IS CONTRACT ECTS DOCUMENTS DELETED.	
	A CERT	IFICAT THE I	E FROM WO TEMS CHEC	RKERS! COI	1PENSATI	IRED TO PROVIDE ON IF SUCCESSFU A REQUIREMENT	
	OF COM ISSUAN	MERCIA CE OF	L GENERAL CONTRACT. MENTS, TH	LIABILITY UNLESS (E MINIMUM	Y INSURA OTHERWIS AMOUNT	LL FURNISH PROO NCE PRIOR TO E SPECIFIED IN OF INSURANCE	F
SIGNATURE //	1		SEEF	EVERSE SIDE FOR	TELEPHONE	IDITIONS DAT	E =-01 60
TITLE		. IFE	IN .				3-21-09
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			ADDRESS CHANG	RES TO BE NOTED ABOVE



MODZEA

SIGNATURE

TITLE

RFQ COPY

TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

State of West Virginia Department of Administration Quotation Purchasing Division 2019 Washington Street East Post Office Box 50130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for

RFQ NUMBER DEFK9025

PAGE	
L, 3	1

ADDRESS CORE	RESPONDENCE	TO ATTENTION O	F
	/ - // / / - / / / / / / / / / / / / / 		÷

JOHN ABBOTT 304-558-2544

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES **JOBSITE** SEE SPECIFICATIONS

DATE

ADDRESS CHANGES TO BE NOTED ABOVE

SHIP T

FREIGHT TERMS SHIP VIA F.O.B. TERMS OF SALE DATE PRINTED 04/02/2009 OPENING TIME 01:30PM BID ID OPENING DATE: 05/14/2009 CAT. AMOUNT UNIT PRICE ITEM NUMBER QUANTITY UOP LINE NO. COVERAGE REQUIRED IS \$250,000. SUCCESSFUL VENDOR SHALL) BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE: FURNISH PROOF OF BUILDERS RISK - ALL RISK INSURANCE IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO 100% OF THE AMOUNT OF THE CONTRACT. FIVE PERCENT (5%) OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF (XX) BONDS: THE BID PAYABLE TO THE STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, SHALL BE SUBMITTED WITH EACH BID AS A BID BOND. THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER SHALL ALSO FURNISH A PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR/ MATERIAL BOND FOR 100% OF THE AMOUNT OF THE CONTRACT. BONDS MAY BE PROVIDED IN THE FORM OF A CERTIFIED CHECK IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT, OR BOND FURNISHED BY A SOLVENT SURETY COMPANY AUTHORIZED TO DO BUSINESS IN THE A LETTER OF CREDIT SUBMITTED STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA. IN LIEU OF A BOND WILL ONLY BE ALLOWED FOR PROJECTS PERSONAL OR BUSINESS CHECKS ARE NOT UNDER \$100,000. ACCECPTABLE IN LIEU OF THE 5% BID BOND, PERFORMANCE BOND, OR LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND. A TWO (2) YEAR MAINTENANCE BOND) MAINTENANCE BOND: COVERING THE ROOFING SYSTEM WILL BE A REQUIREMENT OF THE SUCCESSFUL VENDOR. REV. 11/00 EXHIBIT 7 DOMESTIC ALUMINUM, GLASS & STEEL IN PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH WEST VIRGINIA CODE 5-19-1 ET., SEQ., EVERY CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, REPAIR, IMPROVEMENT OR MAINTENANCE OF ALTERATION, PUBLIC WORKS, WHERE THE COST IS MORE THAN \$50,000 AND,

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR TERMS AND CONDITIONS

TELEPHONE



VEZDOR

SIGNATURE

TITLE

KC

FEIN

RFQ COPY

TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

State of West Virginia Department of Administration **Purchasing Division** 2019 Washington Street East Post Office Box 50130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for Quotation

RFQ NUMBER DEFK9025

4

ADDRESS CORRESPONDENCE	O ATTENTION OF
HUDDESS CONDESPONDENCE	CALIENTION OF.

JOHN ABBOTT 304-558-2544

SHIP ō

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

SHIP VIA F.O.B. TERMS OF SALE FREIGHT TERMS DATE PRINTED 04/02/2009 3ID OPENING DATE: BID OPENING TIME 01:30PM 05/14/2009 UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UOP ITEM NUMBER LINE QUANTITY NO. IN THE CASE OF STEEL ONLY, WHERE THE COST OF STEEL IS MORE THAN \$50,000 OR WHERE MORE THAN 10,000 POUNDS OF STEEL ARE REQUIRED, THE STATE WILL ACCEPT ONLY ALUMINUM GLASS, OR STEEL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN THE UNITED STATES. IN ADDITION, ITEMS OF MACHINERY OR EQUIPMENT PURCHASED FOR USE AT THE SITE OF PUBLIC WORKS SHALL BE MADE OF DOMESTIC ALUMINUM, GLASS OR STEEL, UNLESS THE COST OF THE PRODUCT IS LESS THAN \$50,000 OR LESS THAN 10,000 POUNDS OF STEEL ARE USED IN PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS. FOREIGN MADE ALUMINUM, GLASS OR STEEL PRODUCTS MAY BE ACCEPTED ONLY IF THE COST OF DOMESTIC PRODUCTS IS FOUN SUCH COST IS UNREASONABLE IF IT IS TO BE UNREASIONABLIE. 20% OR MORE HIGHER THAN THE BID PRICE FOR FOREIGN MADE IF THE DOMESTIC ALUMINUM, GLASS OR STEEL PRODUCTS. PRODUCTS TO BE SUPPLIED OR PRODUCED IN A "SUBSTANTIAL LABOR SURPLUS AREA", AS DEFINED BY THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, FOREIGN PRODUCTS MAY BE SUPPLIED ONLY IF DOMESTIC PRODUCTS ARE 30% OR MORE HIGHER IN PRICE THAN THE FOREIGN MADE PRODUCTS. IF, PRIOR TO THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT UNDER THE ABOVE PROVISIONS, THE SPENDING OFFICER OF THE SPENDING UNIT DETERMINES THAT THERE EXISTS A BID FOR LIKE FOREIGN ALUMINUM, GLASS OR STEEL THAT IS REASONABLE AND LOWER THAN THE LOWEST BID DOMESTIC PRODUCTS, THE SPENDING OFFICE MAY REQUEST, IN WRITING, A REEVALUATION AND REDUCTION IN THE LOWEST BID FOR SUCH DOMESTIC PRODUCTS. ALL VENDORS MUST INDICATE IN THEIR BID IF THEY ARE SUPPLYING FOREIGN ALUMINUM, GLASS OR STEEL. REV. 3/88 EXHIBIT 9 SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR TERMS AND CONDITIONS

TELEPHONE

ADDRESS CHANGES TO BE NOTED ABOVE



State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division
2019 Washington Street East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston, WW 25305,0130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for Quotation

P	ΑC	3Ε.	
		_	:

DLI K/ULJ	
RESS CORRESPONDEN	CE TO ATTENTION OF

JOHN ABBOTT 304-558-2544

RFQ COPY TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

DATE PRIN	ΓED	TER	MS OF SAL	E	SHIP VI	1		F,O	В,		FREIGHT TERMS	
04/02/2009		<u> </u>										
OPENING DATE:		05/14/	2009	na n		BID	<u>OPE</u>	NING	<u>TIME</u>	01	:30PM	
LINE	QUAI	NTITY	UOP	CAT. NO.	ITEM NUMI	3ER		UNIT	PRICE		AMOUNT	
		00.00000 00.00000					Action of the	00040004500000000				
	NOTICE	END T	CCHAN	CE 8	ACKNOWLED	EMENT	UE	CUNCT	PHCTIN	N.		
	1	TADDE	i	CE &	ACKNOWLLD	, E11E1(1	<u> </u>	CONOT		•	·	
	ROJEC	, ADDL	1127	ł								
					AND/OR AG				REQUIR	ΕD		
					ING SCHEDU							
	CONSTR	UCTION	PROJ	ECT A	DDENDA FOR	R STATE	AG	ENCIE	S:			
		UE ADO		TITUC	INEER SHAL	, pprp	V D E	THE	ADDEND	ш		
					IES THAT							
					THE PROJE					_		
					ARDED TO					E		
		SING D		1	THE ARCHIT							
	SEND A	COPY	OF TH	E ADD	ENDUM TO	THE STA	TE	AGENC	Y FOR			
	WHICH	THE CO	NTRAC	TIS	ISSUED.							
					THE AT							
					END THE AI				חב מוח			
					ENDUM SHOU							
					(14) DAYS					-		
	i	IG DATE	!				-		-			
	(3) A	LL ADD			D BE FORMA					ALL		
		RS AND	1	1	р то тні		1					
	DIVISI		THE	SAME			l .	ATION				
		APPLY			ORIGINAL ADDENDUM				ONLY			
					N ADDENDU					THE	·	
					NG A BID					• • • • •		
	DATE.	UKI 00E	0. •				` -					
	ļ			İ								
	REV. 1	1/96		1								
				ŀ								
	EVIITOT										1	
	EXHIBI	. 10										
	ADDENI	DUM ACK	NOWLE	DGEME	NT						}	
				1		GWG AND CO	KINGTO	ONIC		- 		
IATURE				SEE AL	VERSE SIDE FOR TE	TELEPHONE	NEAL ST	ONO	li	DATE		
E		F	EIN				- 1	ADD	RESS CHA	NGES	TO BE NOTED ABOVE	



State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division
2019 Washington Street East Post Office Box 50130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for Quotation

SH-P TO

R	FC	11	ĮU	M	3E	R			
					_	_	_	_	

PAGE	

ADDRESS CORRESPONDENCE TO ATTENTION OF

ADDRESS CHANGES TO BE NOTED ABOVE

JOHN ABBOTT 304-558-2544

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

) COPY NAME/ADDRESS	HERE
>mzoc		

DATE PRIN	TED	TER	MS OF SAL	E	ŞI	HIP VIA	Į.	O.B	FREIGHTTERMS
04/02/	2009								
3ID OPENING DATE:		05/14/	2009			BID	OPENING	TIME 0	1:30PM
LINE	QUA	ANTITY	UOP	CAT. NO.	ITEM	NUMBER	UN	IT PRICE	AMOUNT
LINE	I HERI ADDENI MY PRO ADDENI NO. 1 NO. 2 NO. 3 NO. 4 NO. 5 I UNDI ADDENI VENDOI REPRES ORAL I AND AI INFORI	EBY ACK DUM(S) DPOSAL, DUM NOS ERSTAND DUM(S) R MUST SENTATI DISCUSS NY STAT MATION FICATIO	NOWLE AND H PLAN THAT MAY B CLEAR ON HE PER ISS BY	DGE RAVE MD S AND FAILURE LY OR BELD NE D AN O	ECEIPT ADE THE OR SPE URE TO SE FOR DERSTAN ASSUME ETWEEN L IS NO WRITING FFICIAL	CONFIRM TREJECTION D THAT AND TO BE NOT BINDING AND ADDENDUM ADDENDUM S:	THE RECENT OF THE REPRESE ONLY ONLY ONLY ONLY ONLY ONLY ONLY ONLY	CHECKED IONS TO IPT OF TH BIDS. L ING ANY NTATIVES THE E DING.	AMOUNT
	REV.	11/96							
				SEE RE	VERSE SIDE FO	OR TERMS AND CO	ONDITIONS		
SIGNATURE K	'C					TELEPHONE		DATE	5-21-09
TITLE /		FE	IN					DDECC CHANCE	S TO BE NOTED ABOVE



NECOOR

RFQ COPY

TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division
2019 Washington Street East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

кеq	u	es	Ţ	TO	ľ
Qu	0	ta	ti	on	ì

RFQ NUMBER

 PA	GE		
 <u></u>	. 7	,	

DEFK9025	<u></u>
DESC CORRECTONDE	IGE TO ATTENTION OF

Α	DDRESS CORR	ESPONDENC	SE TO ATTEN	TION OF:
HИ	ARROTT			

JOHN 304-558-2544

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES

SH-P P TO

JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

DATE PRIN	FED	TER	IMS OF SAL	E	SHIP VIA		F.	O.B.	FREIGHT TERMS
04/02/	2009								<u> </u>
OPENING DATE:	DATE: 05/14/2009			BID	OPE	NING	TIME	01:30PM	
LINE	QUAN	TITY	UOP	CAT.	ITEM NUMBER		UNI	PRICE	AMOUNT
			CU	NTRAC	TORS LICENSE				
					TORO LIGHTOL				·
	WEST VI	IRGINI	A STA	TE CO	DE 21-11-2 REQUI	RES	THAT	ALL	
			1 3		RFORM CONTRACTIN	ŧ			
	STATE N		1 I	1	ł	1			1
	l .			1	OWERED TO ISSUE FOR A CONTRACTO	1			
	LICENSE				WEST VIRGINIA D				
					ING 3, ROOM 319,				
	25305.				4) 558-7890.				
					DE 21-11-11 REQU	1		,	
			1 1		INCLUDE THE CONT	RAC	TORS		
	LICENSE	E NUMB	EK UN	INET	K DID.	1			
	BIDDER	то со	MPLET	E:		V/	/	1	
					VI to the	/	la ma	atri.	// a
•	CONTRAC	CTORS	NAME:		appenter K.	r.Cl	Minn.	CHO!	uc.
					WVOC	7	728		
	CONTRAC	JIURS	LICEN	SE NU	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • •	• • • • •	• • • • • •	• •
	THE SU	CESSE	III BT	DDFR	WILL BE REQUIRED	TO	FURN	ITSH A	
			1 .		ORS LICENSE PRIO	1			F
	A PURCI	HASE O	RDER/	CONTR	ACT				
				AP	PLICABLE LAW				
	THE WE	T VTP	GINIA	STAT	E CODE, PURCHASI	NE	אזעזמ	TON RIII	FS
					HE INFORMATION P				
	THE "RE	EQUEST	FOR	QUOTA	TION" ISSUED BY	THE	PURC		
	I		1 1	OLE A	UTHORITY GOVERNI	NG	THIS		
	PROCURI	EMENT.							
	ANY THE	FORMAT	TON P	BUALD	ED IN SPECIFICAT	TON	MANI	IAIS. DR	
				i	AL OR WRITTEN, W	1			į.
]	occo	 VERSE SIDE FOR TERMS AND CO	NIDITIO	Me		
IATURE /	(C /			OLE DE	TELEPHONE	(4641310		DA	E5-21-09
<u> </u>	1	lei	EIN		<u> </u>			•	
<u> </u>							ADI	JHESS CHANG	GES TO BE NOTED ABOVE



RFQ COPY

TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

State of West Virginia Department of Administration Purchasing Division 2019 Washington Street East Post Office Box 50130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for Quotation

DEFK9025

ADDRESS CORRESPON	DENCE TO ATTENTION OF	
MUDITICOO OOLII ICOL OIY	DEMOR TO MITTER TON OF	÷

JOHN ABBOTT 304-558-2544

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

		्र
1		• • •
ю		
1.		•
1	٠.	/ ::
Е	÷	
L	٠.	
	٠P	٠.
Г	ា). (
1.		١.
L	- =	
в	٠,	١.:
10		
ŀ	:::	300

SIGNATURE

TITLE

SHIP VIA F.O.B. FREIGHT TERMS DATE PRINTED TERMS OF SALE 04/02/2009 BID OPENING DATE: BID OPENING TIME 01:30PM 05/14/2009 UNIT PRICE AMOUNT LINE QUANTITY UOP ITEM NUMBER OR ALTERS THE INFORMATION PROVIDED FROM THE SOURCES AS DESCRIBED IN THE ABOVE PARAGRAPH IS VOID AND OF NO EFFECT. BANKRUPTCY: IN THE EVENT THE VENDOR/CONTRACTOR FILES FOR BANKRUPTCY PROTECTION, THIS CONTRACT IS AUTOMATI-CALLY NULL AND VOID, AND IS TERMINATED WITHOUT FURTHER ORDER. REV. 1/2005 NOTICE A SIGNED BID MUST BE SUBMITTED TO: DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION PURCHASING DIVISION BUILDING 15 2019 WASHINGTON STREET, EAST CHARLESTON, WV 25305-0130 THE BID SHOULD CONTAIN THIS INFORMATION ON THE FACE OF THE ENVELOPE OR THE BID MAY NOT BE CONSIDERED: SEALED BID JOHN ABBOTT----BUYER: REQ. NO.: DEFK9025-----BID OPENING DATE: 05/14/2009----BID OPENING TIME: 1:30 PM---

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR TERMS AND CONDITIONS

TELEPHONE

ADDRESS CHANGES TO BE NOTED ABOVE



State of West Virginia
Department of Administration
Purchasing Division
2019 Washington Street East
Post Office Box 50130
Charleston, WV 25305-0130

74	u	7 3		U	1
մա	01	at	io	n	

DEFK9025

PAG	٤.	-
	0	
16/4	9	,

ADDDESS PODDE	SPONDENCE TO ATTENTION OF
ADDRESS CORRE	SHONDENGE TO A MEN HON OF
JOHN ABBOTT	
Z04-EE9-2E44	

RFQ COPY TYPE NAME/ADDRESS HERE

SH-P TO

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

DATE PRINTED	TER	MS OF SALE	SHI	P VIA	F.O.B.	FREIGHTTERMS
04/02/2009	<u> </u>					
OPENING DATE:	05/14/		~400 p	BID	OPENING TIME	01:30PM
LINE QUAI	VTITY	UOP CA		IUMBER	UNITPRICE	AMOUNT
	TACT Y	OU REGAR	NUMBER IN RDING YOUR 84-277	BID:	IS NECESSARY	
CONCER	PRINT	OR TYPE	NAME OF F	ERSON TO	CONTACT 304-543-1720	6
	<i></i>	<u> </u>				
****	THIS	IS THE	END OF RFG	DEFK9	025 ***** TOTA	AL: <u>253,760.00</u>
					•	
						e y to
I		SE	E REVERSE SIDE FO			L
NATURE KC				TELEPHONE	D	ST-21-09
E		EIN			ADDRESS CHAN	NGES TO BE NOTED ABOVE

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

The Center for National Response
Gallagher Tunnel (Old Turnpike/177)
Storm Water and Slope Erosion Project
Kanawha County, West Virginia
NO. DEFK9025

Prepared for:

West Virginia Army National Guard

Joint Forces Headquarters (WV-JFHQ)
Construction & Facilities Management Office (C&FMO)
1703 Coonskin Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Prepared by:

Potesta & Associates, Inc.

7012 MacCorkle Avenue, SE Charleston, West Virginia 25304

Phone: (304) 342-1400 Fax: (304) 343-9031

Email: potesta@potesta.com

Project No. 0101-08-0283

April 1, 2009



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SPEC	IAL PROVISIONS	1
I.	LOCATION / SITE DESCRIPTION	1
II.	REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS / DEFINITIONS	1
III.	SCOPE OF WORK	2
ÍV.	BIDDERS TO EXAMINE LOCATION	3
V.	SCHEDULE OF WORK	3
VI.	MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES	3
VII.	BORROW (DISPOSAL) AREAS	4
VIII.	DISPOSAL OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL	5
IX.	INTERPRETATION OF APPROXIMATE ESTIMATE OF QUANTITIES	5
X.	SAFETY	5
XI.	REGULATIONS	5
XII.	LAWS TO BE OBSERVED	6
XIII.	PERMITS, LICENSES AND FEES	6
XIV.	ELECTRICITY, WATER SUPPLY AND SANITARY FACILITIES	6
XV.	UTILITIES AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS	6
XVI.	SITE CLEANUP	7
XVII.	ROCK BLASTING	7
XVIII.	TEMPORARY ACCESS ROADS	7
XIX.	SITE CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION	7

XX.	CON	CONTROL AND REVIEW OF WORK BY THE WVANG 8			
XXI.	CITATION OF OTHER SPECIFICATIONS				
TECH	INICA	L SPECIFICATIONS	10		
1.0	MOB 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4	ILIZATION AND DEMOBILIZATION Description Method of Measurement Basis of Payment Pay Item	. 10 . 10 . 10		
2.0	UTIL 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4	ITIES Description Materials Construction Methods Method of Measurement	12 12 12		
3.0	CONS 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5	STRUCTION LAYOUT STAKES Description Materials Construction Methods Measurement and Payment Pay Item	13 13 13 14		
4.0	QUA 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.6	LITY CONTROL Description Materials Construction Methods Method of Measurement Basis of Payment Pay Item	15 15 15 16 16		
5.0	SITE 5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5	PREPARATION Description Construction Methods Method of Measurement Basis of Payment Pay Items	17 18 20 20		
6.0	EROS 6.1 6.2	SION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL Scope	21		

	6.3	Payment	22	
	6.4	Pay Item	22	
7.0	ROCKFALL MESH			
	7.1	Description	23	
	7.2	Materials	23	
	7.3	Construction Methods	23	
	7.4	Method of Measurement		
	7.5	Basis of Payment		
	7.6	Pay Item	24	
8.0	DRAINAGE STRUCTURES			
	8.1	Description	25	
	8.2	Materials	25	
	8.3	Construction Methods		
	8.4	Method of Measurement		
	8.5	Pay Items		
9.0	FILL MATERIAL			
	9.1	Description	29	
	9.2	Materials	29	
	9.3	Borrow/Disposal Area	29	
	9.4	Construction Methods		
	9.5	Method of Measurement		
	9.6	Basis of Payment	33	
	9.7	Pay Item	33	
10.0	CHAIN-LINK FENCING			
	10.1	Description	34	
	10.2	Materials		
	10.3			
	10.4	Method of Measurement		
	10.5	Basis of Payment	37	
	10.6	Pay Item	38	
11.0	REVEGETATION			
	11.1	Description	39	
	11.2	Materials		
	11.3	Construction Methods		
	11.4	Method of Measurement		
	11.5	Basis of Payment	44	
	11.6	Pay Items	44	

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

The Center for National Response Gallagher Tunnel (Old Turnpike/177) Storm Water and Slope Erosion Project Kanawha County, West Virginia

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

I. LOCATION / SITE DESCRIPTION

Description

This stormwater and slope erosion project consists of stabilizing a rock cut slope and constructing a parking area with appropriate drainage control at the center for National Response/Memorial Tunnel site.

Location

The project site is located at Standard off Exit 74 of the West Virginia Turnpike. To access the project site, turn left on Paint Creek Road (County Highway 83), go northwest approximately 1.5 miles, turn left onto Memorial Tunnel Place and continue approximately one mile to the Memorial Tunnel Center for National Response Training Center.

II. REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS / DEFINITIONS

All references to "WVANG" in these Specifications shall mean West Army National Guard (WVANG), or WVANG's Engineer or authorized representative.

All reference to "ASTM" shall mean the American Society of Testing and Material Specifications, Latest Edition unless otherwise noted.

All reference to "AASHTO Specifications" shall mean the Standard Specifications for Transportation Materials and Methods of Sampling and Testing by the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials, latest edition, and all subsequent addenda thereto.

All reference to "WVDOT Standard Specifications" shall mean State of West Virginia Department of Transportation, Division of Highways Standard Specifications for Roads and Bridges, adopted 2000, and all-subsequent addenda thereto.

All references to the "Contractor" shall be understood to mean the successful bidder and or firm or corporation undertaking the execution of the work under the terms of these Specifications.

All reference to "OSHA" shall be understood to mean The Occupational Safety and Health Administration and the standards set in the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.

III. SCOPE OF WORK

The work covered by the Special Provisions and Technical Specifications consists of furnishing all labor, plant, power, equipment and supplies, and performing all operations necessary for the completion of the project. The Contractor shall perform all operations necessary adjacent to Center For Nation Response Training Center including:

- Providing sediment control.
- ♦ Maintain and protect all utilities and existing drainage structures within the limits of work.
- ♦ Clearing and grubbing at the site, and removal or burning of debris, trash, tree roots, and associated materials.
- Removal and disposal of unstable rocks from cut slope.
- Construction and installation of support areas, and maintenance of access roads to the site to install rockfall mesh.
- ♦ Installation of fencing adjacent to highwall on roadway to Memorial Tunnel.
- ♦ Construction and installation of drainage control items including:
 - o 42-inch Reinforced Concrete Pipe (RCP) culvert, stormwater manhole, and headwalls.
 - 24-inch RCP to connect existing 24-inch CMP culvert that extends out from the WV Turnpike Embankment.
 - Riprap ditches to handle drainage between fill area and WV Turnpike Embankment and to convey drainage adjacent to proposed parking lot access road to existing drop inlet (di.).

- Construction of parking area including installation of fill material and gravel.
- Revegetation of disturbed areas.

The Contractor also shall be responsible for surveying, including establishing construction baselines, measuring and developing all completed quantities on the job, and for ordering, purchase and delivery of any and all materials required for construction or required for development of support areas. The Contractor shall perform all other operations as incidental to the program as specified herein.

IV. BIDDERS TO EXAMINE LOCATION

Prospective bidders are required to examine the locations of the proposed work and to determine, each in their own way, the difficulties which may be encountered in the prosecution of the same. The submission of a bid shall be prima facie evidence that such examination and determinations have been made by the Bidder. No claims for additional compensation will be considered by the WVANG based on obstruction or conditions at the location of the work, which may add to the difficulties or costs of construction, even though such obstructions or conditions are not shown on the Construction Drawings or indicated in the other construction documents. Prospective bidders are advised that should they deem it necessary to obtain any subsurface samples of test borings etc., at the site, they should obtain their own permission from the landowners.

V. SCHEDULE OF WORK

Before commencing work on this project, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a schedule of construction activities for approval by the WVANG.

The Contractor shall provide adequate supervision, labor, tools, equipment, and materials to prosecute the work energetically and complete the work within the time specified.

It is the intention not to delay the work for the checking of lines or grades, but if necessary, working operations shall be suspended for such reasonable time as the WVANG may require for that purpose. No special compensation shall be paid for the cost to the Contractor for any of the work or delay occasioned by checking lines and grades, by making other necessary measurements, or by inspection.

VI. MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES

The Contractor shall be responsible for providing all necessary volumetric, dimension, and weight measurement equipment necessary to prosecute the work as shown on the Construction Drawings and to accurately determine quantities for payment of Contract Bid Items as approved by the Engineer. Such measurements and equipment shall be subject to the approval of the WVANG for use in this project.

VII. BORROW (DISPOSAL) AREAS

All borrow (disposal) areas must be approved by WVANG. Should the Contractor decide to obtain and utilize any borrow areas outside of construction limits, or move material from one property owner to another unless designated on the Construction Drawings, the Contractor shall be responsible to obtain from the property owner(s) of the borrow areas, all necessary rights of entry, including rights of entry for WVANG for inspection purposes. The said rights of entry agreement must state that the property owner(s) indemnify and hold harmless the WVANG for Contractor's action for any injury or damages whatsoever resulting from the use of the property.

The Contractor also shall submit a borrow area reclamation plan for prior approval by WVANG. The Contractor shall observe the following NEPA compliance schedule relative to selecting and utilizing any off site borrow areas and or any waste disposal areas.

- a. No borrow (disposal) site operations will affect a site listed in, eligible or proposed to be listed in the National Register of Historic Places.
- b. No borrow (disposal) operations will be located within one-quarter mile of any Federally listed established or prospective component of the National Wild and Scenic River System under 16 USC 1274 and 1276.
- c. Borrow (disposal) site operations will not cause a significant encroachment within the base floodplain (CE.O. 11988: Floodplain Management).
- d. Borrow (disposal) site operations will not be located in or affect a critical habitat of a federally listed endangered or threatened species under 16 USC 1531, et. seq.
- e. No borrow (disposal) operations will occur in wetland areas which are designated by appropriate agencies.
- f. Borrow (disposal) site operations will be consistent with any approved Construction Drawings governing ambient air quality.
- g. Adherence to these mitigation measures does not relieve the Contractor of the obligation or responsibility to obtain any other Federal, State, or local approvals required to use borrow (disposal) areas and conduct such activities.
- h. Documentation: Copies of borrow (disposal) site approvals and concurrences will be submitted to the WVANG prior to the commencement of reclamation activities.

i. Site Monitoring: Borrow (disposal) activities will be monitored by the State to ensure compliance with contractual requirements, applicable Federal, State, and local laws, and any permit conditions.

VIII. DISPOSAL OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL

All waste areas shall be obtained in accordance with Special Provisions Section VII. of these specifications. All unsuitable materials (wood, trash, debris, and garbage) as determined by the WVANG shall be wasted by the Contractor, at his/her expense, outside the limits of work conforming to the requirements of Sections 5.2.8 of these Specifications. Wood may be burned in conformity with Sections 5.2.7 of these Specifications.

The Contractor shall observe the NEPA compliance schedule relative to selecting and utilizing any off-site disposal areas in accordance with Special Provisions Section VII of these Specifications.

IX. INTERPRETATION OF APPROXIMATE ESTIMATE OF QUANTITIES

The estimate of quantities of work to be done and/or materials to be furnished under the Special Provisions and Technical Specifications, as shown on the Contract Bid Schedule, is approximate and is given only as a basis of calculation upon which the award of the Contract is to be made. WVANG reserves the right to increase or decrease any or all of the quantities of work or to omit any of them, as it may deem necessary.

X. SAFETY

All regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA) are in effect for this Contract. WVANG shall not be liable for any citations received by the Contractor as a result of failure to comply with applicable OSHA standards. Compensation is to be included in the various items of the Contract for the expense involved in complying with these standards. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with Section 107.7 of the WVDOH Standard Specifications and Addendums regarding public convenience and safety.

XI. REGULATIONS

All appropriate Township, County, State, and Federal Regulations shall apply to this Contract. It shall be the Contractor's sole responsibility to be aware of these regulations and to comply with them. WVANG shall not be liable for any citations received by the Contractor. The Contractor shall keep the existing roads open and safe to public vehicular traffic at all times and shall provide appropriate barriers and warning devices as directed by the WVANG.

XII. LAWS TO BE OBSERVED

The Contractor shall at all times, observe, comply with, and post as required all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations in any manner affecting the conduct of the work or applying to employees on the project as well as all orders or decrees which have been or may be promulgated or enacted by any legal bodies or tribunals having authority or jurisdiction over the work, materials, employees, or Contract. The Contractor shall protect and indemnify WVANG and its representatives against any claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree whether by the Contractor or by the Contractor's employees.

XIII. PERMITS, LICENSES AND FEES

The Contractor shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the work. Permits required for this project may include but not be limited to: Water Quality Certification from West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection (WVDEP) and PLC permit from Public Land Corporation and burning permit from West Virginia Department of Natural Resources (WVDNR). A copy of the permits as procured shall be furnished to the WVANG prior to initiation of the work under this Contract.

XIV. ELECTRICITY, WATER SUPPLY AND SANITARY FACILITIES

Electricity and water supplies and sanitary facilities are located near the site. Arrangements to use these facilities shall be made by the Contractor, and all costs for such arrangements shall be borne by the Contractor at no additional cost to the WVANG.

XV. UTILITIES AND OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS

The Contractor shall be solely responsible to correctly locate all existing active underground and overhead utilities at the project sites and take precautions to avoid damage to them. Any existing utility lines damaged by the Contractor shall be replaced by the Contractor or repaired at no cost to the WVANG. The Contractor shall notify the utility companies likely to be affected well in advance and before beginning any work within the project sites. In the event of damage to the existing utilities or other facilities, the Contractor shall notify the affected utility(s) and the WVANG immediately and make, or have made, all necessary repairs and bear the expense thereof and resulting damaged caused thereby. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to arrange for relocating the utility lines, where required and as directed by the WVANG, in accordance with the guidelines set forth by the utility company, prior to beginning construction. The Contractor will be reimbursed for actual charges invoiced by the Utility Company. The utility companies (and Miss Utility of West Virginia) must be contacted by the Contractor at least one week prior to commencement of construction activities for the purpose of field locating and marking utility owned facilities within the project area. The name, address, and phone number of the Miss Utility of West Virginia location service and of

1 1 1 1 1 1

Virginia location service and of the utility companies are as follows:

Miss Utility of West Virginia

1-800-245-4848

XVI. SITE CLEANUP

Before the project shall be considered as having been satisfactorily completed, the Contractor shall clean and remove, from the project site, all surplus and discarded materials, and equipment and shall further remove all debris and objectionable materials of any kind from areas used or disturbed by the construction operations within or within sight of the project area.

XVII. ROCK BLASTING

The Contractor shall not conduct blasting operations.

XVIII. TEMPORARY ACCESS ROADS

The Contractor shall construct and maintain temporary access roads for convenient access to the various parts of the work, and for other necessary purposes incidental to the performance of this Contract. The location of access roads shall be approved by the WVANG or Engineer prior to construction. No separate payment for construction and maintenance of such roads will be made. The Contractor shall erect such temporary fences or guards as may be necessary to keep unauthorized persons away from the work. Grading and surfacing of temporary access roads, excavations, fills and embankments for purposes of construction, or for convenience, beyond the limits of ordered excavations and all temporary fences and guards, shall be provided by the Contractor and shall be maintained in good condition. The Contractor shall be required to maintain all roads used by his hauling equipment in a dust-controlled condition. Upon completion, the Contractor shall return the disturbed areas to the approximate original condition as approved by the WVANG.

XIX. SITE CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Conditions at the site shall be examined by the Contractor, and he shall assume responsibility as to the contours and the character of the earth, rock, water and other items that may be encountered during the excavation and filling operations.

Ground water may be encountered at various locations within the proposed work area and pumping or diversion may be required to remove ground water from these locations prior to performing the work.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the operation and maintenance of any required diversion

diversion or pumping facilities for removing ground water from work areas during progress of the work under this Contract.

The Contractor shall take any necessary steps to prevent erosion or silting problems from occurring and to minimize pollution or sedimentation of streams adjacent to the site. If any such problems develop, the Contractor shall be responsible to take immediate corrective action.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the repair or replacement of streets or driveways (blacktop, gravel & concrete), trees, shrubs, fences, or any other physical features disturbed by construction under this contract to original condition or better.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the replacement of any existing boundary or corner markers disturbed by construction activities.

XX. CONTROL AND REVIEW OF WORK BY THE WVANG

All services rendered by the WVANG consist of professional opinions and recommendations made in accordance with generally accepted WVANG practice. Under no circumstances is it the intent of the WVANG to directly control the physical activities of the Contractor or the Contractor's workmen's accomplishment of work on this project.

The presence of the WVANG at the site is to provide the WVANG a continuing source of professional advice, opinions and recommendations based upon the Field Representative's and/or WVANG's observations of the Contractor's work and does not include any superintending, supervision or direction of the actual work of the Contractor or the Contractor's workmen.

Any construction review of the Contractor's performance conducted by the WVANG is not intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures, in, or near the construction site.

XXI. <u>CITATION OF OTHER SPECIFICATIONS</u>

Whenever the Specifications for this Contract refer to the specifications of any society, institute, association or government organization, then such specifications cited shall become a part of this Contract as if written in full. Commonly used abbreviations have the following meanings:

ASTM - American Society for Testing Materials

ASA - American Standards Association

AWWA - American Water Works Association

AASHTO - American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials

ACI - American Concrete Institute

Where reference is made to a specification, it shall be the latest revision at the time called for bids, except as noted on the Construction Drawings or elsewhere herein.

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

1.0 MOBILIZATION AND DEMOBILIZATION

1.1 Description

This work shall consist of the performance of construction preparatory operations, including the movement of personnel and equipment to the project sites and for the establishment of the Contractor's offices, buildings and other facilities including the construction of all temporary access roads as necessary to begin work on a substantial phase of the contract. The location of Contractor's office to be established shall be approved by WVANG. It also shall include all demobilization activities involving the removal from the sites of all plant, equipment, supplies and personnel after completion of the work including cleanup of all rubbish and waste materials generated during the construction of this project; and restoration of any damage to existing site improvements resulting from the Contractor's activities at the site; and installation of the project sign.

Equipment and material storage area is identified on the Construction Drawings. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to obtain approval for additional equipment and material storage areas located within the Construction Limits from the WVANG and from the landowner for storage areas located outside of the Construction Limits.

1.2 Method of Measurement

The method of measurement will be per lump sum.

1.3 Basis of Payment

The bid for "Mobilization and Demobilization" shall be a lump sum and cannot be more than 10% of the TOTAL AMOUNT BID for the project. Partial payments will be as follows:

- (a) One-half of the amount bid will be released to the Contractor with the first estimate payable, not less than 15 days after the start of work at the project site.
- (b) The final one-half of the amount bid shall be released with the estimate payable after the work is accepted by the WVANG and when all "As-Built" drawings are submitted and approved by WVANG.

Nothing herein shall be construed to limit or preclude partial payments otherwise provided for by the Contract. No deduction will be made nor will any increase be made, in the lump sum mobilization and demobilization item amount regardless of decreases or increases in the final total contract amount or for any other cause.

1.4 Pay Item

Item 1.0. "Mobilization and Demobilization" per lump sum. Cannot be more than 10% of the TOTAL AMOUNT BID for the project.

2.0 UTILITIES

2.1 Description

This work shall consist of all necessary measures to relocate, maintain and protect all utilities, and existing drainage structures that are not project scope, within the limits of work specified herein and on the Construction Drawings.

The contractor shall notify the utility in writing at least fifteen (15) but preferably thirty (30) days prior to the time that work within the area will be done.

The Contractor shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and/or performing all necessary work to the satisfaction of the affected utility company, the West Virginia Turnpike Authority, and/or the West Virginia Department of Highways in connection with any disturbances within their right-of-way or services.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for locating all utilities within the limits of work. All damage made to existing utilities and drainage structures by the Contractor shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor. In the event damage does occur, the Contractor shall notify the affected utility and the WVANG immediately and make or have made all necessary repairs and bear the expenses thereof and resulting damage caused thereby.

The Contractor shall obtain right-of-entry and/or any necessary permits for repairs or relocation.

<u>Utility Companies Contacts</u> Miss Utility of West Virginia 1-800-245-4848

2.2 Materials

All materials used for utility related disturbance shall be in accordance with these specifications or as indicated by the affected utility.

2.3 Construction Methods

All work shall be in accordance with these specifications or in accordance with those methods as indicated by the affected utility.

2.4 Method of Measurement

The Contractor will not bid on utility work but will be reimbursed the actual approved invoice cost. The Contractor shall submit an estimate for utility relocation to the WVANG for approval. The WVANG will not reimburse the Contractor for any WVDOH costs. Only utilities affected by the proposed reclamation will be reimbursed.

3.0 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT STAKES

3.1 <u>Description</u>

This item consists of furnishing, placing, and maintaining construction layout stakes necessary for the proper performance of the work under this contract including borrow areas. It shall further consist of determining the exact units of measure for payment. It also consists of checking and making any field adjustment to the plan alignment, grades and elevations as considered necessary by the WVANG. Additionally, this item shall also include the preparation of "As-Built" Construction Drawings including the Reclamation Plan and any others specifically requested by the WVANG. All of these "As-Built" Construction Drawings shall be provided prior to the Final Inspection Meeting. Upon receipt and approval of the "As-Built" Construction Drawings by WVANG, the final one-half of the amount bid for Mobilization and Demobilization under Section 1 shall be released with the estimate payable.

3.2 Materials

Conventional survey stakes, hubs, batter boards, flagging, templates, straightedges and other devices necessary for laying out all parts of the work.

3.3 Construction Methods

- 3.3.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper layout of the work. The WVANG will provide the Contractor with survey information regarding the baselines and the existing surface features shown on the Construction Drawings. The Contractor shall make all calculations involved and shall furnish and place all layout stakes.
- The Contractor shall provide field forces and shall set all additional stakes as needed, 3.3.2 such as offset stakes, reference point stakes, slope stakes, grade stakes, stakes for drainage, or other structures, supplementary bench marks, and any other horizontal or vertical controls necessary to secure a correct layout of the work including the re-establishment of the survey and construction baselines (as necessary), as shown on the Construction Drawings. The Contractor shall also perform any necessary cross section surveying of the existing ground surface at the intervals shown within the Construction Drawings, provide an overlay of the surveyed cross sections on the crosssections shown on the Construction Drawings, and submit the same to the WVANG for comparison prior to initiating earthwork. The original grade line and proposed final grade line shall be included on all sections. Incomplete cross sections will be returned to the Contractor for necessary additions. Cross sections, which do not encompass all areas of both earthwork excavation (including borrow excavation) and fill placement shall be considered incomplete without exception. The Contractor shall also include the locations of baselines used showing cross section locations on a copy of the reclamation plan when submitting cross sections.

- 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for assuring the layout staking work is in conformance to the lines, grades, elevations, dimensions, and locations shown on the Construction Drawings or as required by the WVANG. The Contractor shall furnish a copy of his/her survey records for checking by the WVANG and for the WVANG's permanent file. These records shall be furnished as they are completed during the progress of the work.
 - Inspection or checking of the Contractor's layout by the WVANG and the acceptance of all or part of it shall not relieve the Contractor of his/her responsibility to secure the proper dimensions, grades, and elevations of the several parts of the work.
- 3.3.4 The Contractor shall exercise care in the preservation of stakes and benchmarks, including existing property line markers, and shall have them reset at his/her expense when any are damaged, lost, displaced or removed. The Contractor shall use competent personnel and suitable equipment for the layout work required and shall provide that it be done under the supervision of, or directed by, a Registered Professional Civil Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor registered in the State of West Virginia.

3.4 Measurement and Payment

Measurement and payment for furnishing, setting, maintaining, and resetting the stakes when necessary, and for furnishing all engineering personnel, equipment, materials, and all incidentals thereto, shall be by the lump sum bid for "Construction Layout Stakes". The lump sum payment also shall include the cost for providing the WVANG pre- and post-construction ground line cross-sections for all disturbed or regraded areas including borrow areas and "As-Built" Construction Drawings as described herein. Said lump sum bid cannot be more than 5% of the TOTAL AMOUNT BID for the project. No deduction will be made, nor will any increase be made, in the lump sum "Construction Layout Stakes" item amount regardless of decreases or increases in the final total contract amount or for any other cause.

3.5 Pay Item

Item 3.0. "Construction Layout Stakes," per lump sum. Cannot be more than 5% of the TOTAL AMOUNT BID for the project.

4.0 QUALITY CONTROL

4.1 <u>Description</u>

This work shall consist of testing for verification that the materials supplied and the work performed are in accordance with these specifications.

4.2 Materials

- 4.2.1 The Contractor shall submit a minimum of two (2) copies of shop drawings, catalog cuts and material certifications (as applicable) to the WVANG of all off-site materials to be incorporated into the work. Written approval from the WVANG will be required prior to incorporation of these items into the work.
- 4.2.2 The Contractor shall submit at least two (2) copies of the results of all tests conducted on in-situ material, concrete and grout to be used in this project, soil tests to determine the lime and nutrient requirements of the areas to be revegetated, compressive strength test for grout in accordance with ASTM C109, and for concrete in accordance with ASTM C31 & C39.

4.3 Construction Methods

- 4.3.1 The Contractor shall furnish the services of his own testing laboratory or select an independent testing laboratory, as long as the laboratory is under the direct supervision of a Registered Professional Civil Engineer. The laboratory must be approved by the WVANG.
- 4.3.2 Testing for compaction, soil nutrient and lime requirements for soil; compressive strength tests for concrete and grout; shall be performed as required by these specifications andor ordered by the Engineer in writing. The Engineer will determine the locations and time of any testing herein specified and the need and extent of any testing in addition to that which is herein specified.
- 4.3.3 Only new and first class materials, which conform to the requirements of these Specifications, shall be used unless specified otherwise. When requested by the WVANG, the Contractor shall furnish a written statement of the origin, composition, and manufacturer of any or all materials (manufactured or produced) that are to be used in the work. The sources of supply of each material used shall be approved by the WVANG before delivery is started. If, at any time, sources previously approved fail to produce materials acceptable to the WVANG, the Contractor shall furnish materials from other approved sources.

4.4 Method of Measurement

The method of measurement for determining the quantity of quality control work done as described above will be incidental to the overall project cost.

4.5 Basis of Payment

The quantity of quality control work done will be incidental to the overall project lump sum amount.

4.6 Pay Item

No Pay Item. Quality control in incidental to the overall project cost.

5.0 SITE PREPARATION

5.1 <u>Description</u>

5.1.1 Clearing and Grubbing

Work performed under this section shall include the removal and disposal of all trees, stumps, shrubs and any other vegetation, wood, debris, and garbage of any nature from those areas specified below and/or shown on the Construction Drawings and/or any other areas as approved by WVANG. This work shall also include the preservation from injury to all vegetation, utilities or other objects to remain.

5.1.2 Access Road Construction

Access roads constructed to gain access to, travel between, or otherwise required for equipment /vehicular site access shall be kept to a minimum and only constructed where necessary upon approval from the WVANG, where applicable. Contractor constructs such travel routes, they shall be reclaimed and revegetated according to Section 11 of these specifications upon completion of the construction activities, as deemed necessary by the WVANG, with associated costs being incidental. Any access in addition to that shown on the Construction Drawings shall require the Contractor to obtain written permission from the respective land owner. The existing access roads shall be maintained during construction (except when culvert, ditch and road construction are being performed), and shall be left in a condition equal to, or better than, the existing condition upon completion of construction. Resurfacing and/or stabilization stone will be incidental to the cost of the work described herein, except where designated on the Construction Drawings, for any road upgrading required for construction entry, as deemed necessary by the WVANG, to facilitate site travel. Final grading, stabilization, and providing final drainage control for existing access roads shall be performed after reclamation operations for the project have been completed.

5.1.3 Fence Replacement and Temporary Fencing

When existing fences are encountered within the work limits, which by necessity of the construction activities require their dismantling, the WVANG shall be consulted to secure their approval for the need of fencing as well as determination as to whether temporary and/or permanent fencing will be utilized. Temporary fencing shall be installed along the alignment selected by the WVANG, with sufficient material included to alter said alignment as may be required to accommodate the construction activity. Similarly, approval for the use and location of permanent fencing shall be obtained from the WVANG well in advance of construction. Typically, permanent fencing shall be installed in the location of the existing fence. Existing fences outside the construction limits and near, or adjacent to, the project are to remain in place. Any

place. Any fencing damaged outside the work limits shall be repaired or replaced at the expense of the Contractor, to a condition equal to, or better than, its original condition. Any and all fencing costs shall be incidental and covered under the lump sum bid for Item 5.0 Site Preparation.

Temporary fence shall be installed as needed at the discretion and approval of the WVANG. Temporary fence shall consist of metal or fiberglass posts. Posts shall be a minimum of five feet in height. Non-electric temporary fence shall use four (4) strands of barbed wire anchored to metal posts set on fifteen (15) foot centers.

If temporary fence is electrified, three (3) strands of barbed wire or six (6) conductor wires of woven fiberglass may be used. Posts shall be set on twenty (20) foot centers. Battery or solar powered energizers may be used to electrify the temporary fence provided that a minimum of one (1) joule of output is used.

5.2 <u>Construction Methods</u>

- 5.2.1 The specific areas to be cleared and grubbed are as shown on the Construction Drawings and are generally described as, but not limited to, those specific areas of excavation, backfill, soil borrow or drainage structure installation.
- 5.2.2 The Contractor shall clear the site within the limits of the areas to be regraded. The WVANG shall exercise control over clearing and shall designate all trees, plants and other objects to be removed or to remain.
- 5.2.3 Clearing and grubbing shall be completed prior to initiation of earthwork operations only to the extent necessary to complete the work. The Contractor shall confine his operations strictly to required areas. If he clears and grubs beyond the required areas, whether knowingly or accidentally, he shall, at his expense, replant and otherwise restore all areas outside the limit lines to a condition equal to that existing prior to start of work.
- 5.2.4 All timber eight (8) inches in diameter and larger at stump height shall be saw cut prior to grubbing operations. Timber shall be topped with the branches removed and stacked and stockpiled in an appropriate manner in an accessible location approved by the WVANG on the property from which it was cut. Timber to be stockpiled shall not be pushed down by equipment prior to being cut nor can it be indiscriminately shoved into a stockpile.
- 5.2.5 All stumps, roots, buried logs and brush shall be removed. Grass, however, may be incorporated into the resoiling material. Taproots and other projections over 1-½ inches in diameter shall be grubbed out to a depth of at least ten (10) inches below the planned subgrade or slope elevation. All holes remaining after the grubbing operation shall have the sides broken down to flatten out the slopes, and shall be filled with

- filled with suitable materials, moistened and properly compacted.
- 5.2.6 Cleared and grubbed areas shall be worked such that positive drainage is provided to prevent ponding of water except for the purpose of sediment control sumps as approved by the WVANG.
- 5.2.7 All organic material shall be burned completely to ash or otherwise removed from the site and disposed of in a manner approved by the WVANG. Burning of the combustible material will not be permitted on or near refuse, mine portals or within close proximity to coal seams or utilities. The Contractor shall obtain all permits and licenses required prior to burning the material. A plan showing the location of material to be burned and all fire control measures to be implemented, including copies of permits and licenses, shall be submitted to the WVANG's representative at the site for approval.
- 5.2.8 All other materials generated from required clearing and grubbing operations shall be removed and disposed of by the Contractor. All garbage, construction debris, etc., shall be disposed of in approved waste areas or landfills. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain, at no expense to the WVANG, all necessary waste and borrow areas or landfills for the disposal of waste materials in accordance with any applicable local, state, and/or federal regulations including compliance with NEPA requirements (See Section VII for NEPA Compliance Schedule). All waste and borrow areas must be approved by the WVANG and, the Contractor must provide a reclamation plan for approval. In addition, for all waste and borrow areas outside the construction limits, the Contractor must obtain from the property owner a right-of-entry agreement in which the property owner indemnifies and holds the WVANG harmless from any injury or damages whatsoever resulting from the use of the property.
- 5.2.9 It shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor to correctly locate and avoid all underground, on-ground, and overhead utilities, facilities and other structures and constructions, and for that purpose, shall employ all necessary precautions and methods to insure avoidance of and damage to such constructions. In the event damage does occur, the Contractor shall notify the affected WVANG and the WVANG immediately and make or have made all necessary repairs and bear the expense thereof and resulting damage caused thereby. See "Special Provisions," Section XV "Utilities and Other Obstructions," of these specifications for more information on utilities.
- 5.2.10 Trash, garbage, railroad ties, roofing shingles, tires, plastic, metal and other unsuitable material resulting from demolition shall be disposed of by the Contractor at his/her own responsibility and expense outside the work limits in an approved landfill, as approved by the WVANG, unless otherwise directed.

- **5.2.11** Should offsite disposal or borrow be necessary, the Contractor shall observe the NEPA Compliance Schedule as per Section VII of the Special Provisions.
- 5.2.12 Existing site access roads shall provide safe, all-weather access to the site. These existing roads, including stoned and paved roads, shall be maintained during construction and left in a better than or equal to condition. The Contractor is responsible for locating and avoiding all underground and overhead utilities and other improvements during access road grading and maintenance.
- 5.2.13 Any existing fence lines encountered during construction activities shall be removed, repaired or replaced to an "as good as" or "better than" condition and as approved by the WVANG. In situations where fencing is used to control or contain cattle and livestock, the Contractor shall also be responsible for any temporary fencing required to assure the safety and containment of the livestock.

5.3 Method of Measurement

5.3.1 There shall be no measurement of the "Site Preparation" item as it is a lump sum.

5.4 Basis of Payment

5.4.1 This item shall be paid at the bid lump sum price. The amount shall not exceed 10% of the TOTAL AMOUNT BID for each bid. Payment shall be full compensation for doing all the work herein prescribed in a workmanlike and acceptable manner; including the furnishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment, supplies, and incidentals necessary to complete the work.

No deduction will be made, nor will any increase be made, in the lump sum "Site Preparation" amount regardless of decreases or increases in the final total contract amount or for any other cause.

5.5 Pay Items

Item 5.0, "Site Preparation," per lump sum cannot be more than 10% of the "TOTAL AMOUNT BID" for the project.

6.0 EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

6.1 Scope

This item shall consist of furnishing, maintaining and removing temporary erosion and sedimentation control as detailed on the Construction Drawings, and as directed by the WVANG. These shall include silt fences and rock check dams.

- 6.1.1 Materials: All constituent elements of the erosion and sediment control devices shall conform to the notes and dimensions as shown on the Construction Drawings.
- 6.1.2 Silt fence filter fabric shall be specifically recommended for this purpose by the manufacturer and shall meet or exceed the following specifications:

Property	Value
Bursting Strength (ASTM D751)	150 psi
Grab Strength (ASTM D1682)	100 psi
Permeability	0.02 to 0.03 cm/sec

Silt Fence posts shall be either timber stakes (2-inch by 2-inch minimum) or pressed steel stakes set plumb and to sufficient depth to provide a sound anchor for the supporting wire fence and/or filter fabric.

- 6.1.3 Rock check dams shall use Riprap as specified in the Construction Drawings.
- 6.1.4 Installation: All erosion and sediment control devices shall be placed as detailed by the Construction Drawings and/or Specifications prior to starting the excavation or construction activities. Silt fence and rock check dams shall be constructed at the locations and to the dimensions shown on the Construction Drawings. Vertical wood posts shall be protected by means of a metal cap or other device to prevent damage when hammers are used to drive the posts into the ground.
- 6.1.5 Maintenance: Silt fences and rock check dams shall be maintained in a functionally sound condition and accumulations of silt shall be promptly removed each day. Following the usefulness of each structure, it shall be removed and disposed of in an approved location.

In-stream sumps shall be cleaned out at the direction of the WVANG. Following the stabilization of the work site against further significant erosion, sumps shall be removed or allowed to fill in as directed by the WVANG.

6.2 Measurement

- 6.2.1 Silt fence shall be measured on a lineal foot basis for the length of sediment control acceptably installed, maintained and removed.
- 6.2.2 Rock check dams shall be measured on a per each basis, to include acceptable installation, maintenance and removal.

6.3 Payment

Payment as specified shall be full compensation for all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required to install, maintain and remove the items specified.

- 6.3.1 Payment for Silt Fence shall be based upon the lineal feet accepted and approved by the WVANG and the Unit Price listed in the Bid Schedule.
- 6.3.2 Payment for Rock Check Dams shall be based upon the number of structures accepted and approved by WVANG and the unit price listed in the Bid Schedule.

6.4 Pay Item

Item 6.1, "Silt Fence" per linear foot.

Item 6.2, "Rock Check Dams" per each.

7.0 ROCKFALL MESH

7.1 <u>Description</u>

3 1 1

This section describes the requirements for furnishing and installing anchors and rockfall mesh on finished backslopes.

7.2 Materials

Materials shall be manufactured by Maccaferri Inc. or equivalent in accordance with the following:

- 7.2.1 Wire Rope Anchorage, Galvanized, Rope 5/8-inch Diameter. Steel Core Type 6x19+OWRC (ASTM A 1023 / A 1023M 02) with terminal eyelets, using thimbles and pressed aluminum sleeves.
 - Simple drapery protection with double twist wire mesh type 8x10, wire 0.106-inch diameter brown PVC coated, ASTM A 975.
- 7.2.2 Contractor shall provide wire rope ½ inch [12 mm] in diameter, zinc-coated steel structural wire strand, in accordance with ASTM A 603, class A.
- 7.2.3 Hardware, grout, and associated fittings shall be Maccaferri Inc. recommended or equivalent.

7.3 Construction Methods

- 7.3.1 Before installing mesh, prune shrubs and trees so that mesh will lie flat. The Contractor shall scale backslopes in accordance with Section 9.3.2, Scaling Rock Cuts. The Contractor shall submit copies of the tensile and punching test results along with a sample, 2 ft × 2 ft, of types of rockfall mesh to be used on the project. These samples shall be obtained from a roll of rockfall mesh that is on the project site. At least 14 calendar days before starting the work, submit a plan for the ground anchors that details the following:
 - 1. The proposed construction sequence and schedule.
 - 2. The proposed drilling methods and equipment.
 - 3. The proposed grout, mix design or specifications, and placement procedures.
 - 4. The proposed anchors, plate, washers and nuts, top support wire rope, wire rope clips, thimbles, and rockfall mesh fasteners, all with specifications, including manufacturers' data sheets.
 - 5. Calibration data for each load cell and calibration data for the test jack and master pressure gauges to be used in the work, obtained from calibration tests performed by an independent testing laboratory within 60 calendar days of the

the submission.

- 6. The proposed stressing procedures and stressing equipment setup. Do not begin installation until the WVANG has approved the submission in writing.
- 7.3.2 Wire mesh and associated wire rope anchorage, horizontal wire rope, wire mesh, and ancillary equipment and grout shall be installed using Maccaferri Inc. or equivalent manufacturer's recommendation.

7.4 Method of Measurement

The method of measurement for Rockfall Mesh installation shall be by the square yard acceptably installed. No separate payment shall be made for anchors, lacing and fasteners, grout and any other hardware used. These are considered incidental to the installation of the Rockfall Mesh.

7.5 Basis of Payment

Payment for acceptable installation of Rockfall Mesh will be by the Unit Price bid for "Rockfall Mesh."

7.6 Pay Item

Item 7.0, "Rockfall Mesh," per square yard.

8.0 DRAINAGE STRUCTURES

8.1 <u>Description</u>

8.1.1 This work shall consist of furnishing all labor, equipment and materials necessary to construct the drainage structures shown on the Construction Drawings. Drainage structures shown include but are not limited to riprap ditch, pipes, manholes, and head walls.

8.2 <u>Materials</u>

8.2.1 All rock riprap used throughout the project site shall consist of commercially purchased limestone. Rock for riprap channels shall consist of hard, durable limestone and shall have a d50 of 12 inches unless otherwise stated on the Construction Drawings. The rock shall range in size from 6 inches minimum to 18 inches maximum diameter with no more than 15 percent by weight less than 6 inches.

The rock riprap shall have a maximum weighted loss of thirty percent when subjected to five (5) cycles of the Sodium Sulfate Soundness Test – ASTM C88 (ASTM C88-99a Standard Test Method for Soundness of Aggregates by Use of Sodium Sulfate or Magnesium Sulfate), as modified by the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) T-104.

- 8.2.2 The 24- and 42-inch RCP shall be in accordance with Section 714.19 of the WVDOT Standard Specifications. Pipe bedding shall consist of fine aggregate meeting the requirements of Section 704.6 of the WVDOT Standard Specifications, except that the gradation shall meet the requirements of Section 702.6 of the WVDOT Standard Specifications.
- 8.2.3 Engineering Fabric for separation between riprap ditch, stone, and fill material shall meet the WVDOH Standard Specification 715.11.8.
- 8.2.4 A stormwater manhole shall be installed at the location shown on the Construction Drawings. The manhole shall have a Neenah Foundry R-1713 Manhole Cover or equivalent installed at grade Section 715.19 of the WVDOT Standard Specifications for Roads and Bridges, Adopted 2000 and the WVDOT Standard Details Book, Volume I, dated January 1, 2000, and with as shown on the Construction Drawings.

8.2.5 Concrete Headwalls

A. General: Cast-in-place concrete according to WVDOH Specification Section 601, Class B.

- B. Portland Cement Design Mix: 3000 psi minimum, with 0.48 maximum water-cementitious materials ratio.
 - 1. Reinforcement Fabric: ASTM A 185, steel, welded wire fabric, plain.
 - 2. Reinforcement Bars: ASTM A 615/A 615M, Grade 60 (420 MPa), deformed steel.
- C. Ballast and Pipe Supports: Portland cement design mix, 3000 psi (20.7 MPa) minimum, with 0.58 maximum water-cementitious materials ratio.
 - 1. Reinforcement Fabric: ASTM A 185, steel, welded wire fabric, plain.
 - 2. Reinforcement Bars: ASTM A 615/A 615M, Grade 60 (420 MPa), deformed steel.

8.3 Construction Methods

- 8.3.1 The ditch shall be constructed to the approximate line, grade, and templates as shown on the Construction Drawings or as directed by the WVANG. Excess material from ditch excavation that is suitable for fill may be segregated, stockpiled and utilized to support "Fill Material" operations. Otherwise, excess material from excavation will be required to be disposed of by the Contractor in an off-site disposal area obtained by the Contractor in accordance with Section VIII of the Special Provisions for these specifications.
- **8.3.2** Riprap shall be placed in accordance with Section 218.3.2 of the WVDOT Standard Specifications.
- **8.3.3** Engineering fabric shall be placed in accordance with Section 218.3.7 of the WVDOT Standard Specifications.
- 8.3.4 The 24- and 42-inch RCPs shall be installed at the locations shown on the Construction Drawings. The trench for the pipes shall be excavated in accordance with the detail provided in the Construction Drawings. Pipe bedding shall conform to the details. Fine aggregate shall be placed in the bottom of the trench to the dimensions indicated by the details for leveling purposes.
 - Headwalls shall be constructed at the inlet and outlet of the 42-inch RCP. Headwalls shall be constructed as shown on the Construction Drawings in accordance with the "Concrete for Headwall Requirements."
- **8.3.5** The pre-manufactured Storm Manhole shall be installed at the locations shown on the Construction Drawings.

- 8.3.5.1 Pre-manufactured drainage structures shall be placed on a level, prepared and compacted subgrade as directed and approved by the WVANG. Pre-manufactured structures shall have lifting hooks that will be out of sight after placement and sufficient reinforcement to resist handling stresses.
- 8.3.5.2 Pipe sections shall be flush on the inside of the structure wall and project outside sufficiently for proper connection with the next pipe joint. Masonry shall fit neatly and tight around the pipe. The flow line of the outlet pipe section shall match the bottom elevation of the inlet or manhole. Inlet pipes shall be higher from the structure bottom and as shown on the Construction Drawings. Sufficient mortar shall be placed in the inlet bottom to create a smooth flow line from the inlet pipes to the outlet pipes.
- 8.3.5.3 Backfilling around pre-manufactured drainage structures shall comply with Section 212 of the WVDOT Standard Specifications. Backfill material shall be select, suitable on-site material resulting from excavation operations and as directed and approved by the WVANG. Care shall be taken not to displace or disturb the drainage structure from the intended installation site or elevation.

Backfilling shall be brought up uniformly around the structure to avoid distortional stress. If in the opinion of the WVANG backfilling operations have caused damage or displaced the drainage structure, the Contractor shall remove the drainage structure, re-repair the subgrade, and reset the structure and complete backfilling operations to the satisfaction of and at no cost to the WVANG. The pre-manufactured drainage structures shall be set flush with the surrounding top of gravel surface as shown on the Construction Drawings.

8.3.6 Existing ditches located within the project limits shall be cleaned to provide positive drainage to the inverts of the downstream structures and ensure free flowing conditions within the ditch as directed by the WVANG, at the locations identified on the Construction Drawings. The ditch cleanings shall be disposed of on-site in a location approved by the WVANG or off-site in accordance with Sections VII and VIII of the Special Provisions of these Specifications. Riprap shall be placed in existing ditches at the inlet and outlets of the proposed 42-inch RCP to provide stream channel protection as approved by the WVANG.

8.4 Method of Measurement

8.4.1 The method of measurement for Riprap Channel shall be on a linear foot basis acceptably installed.

- **8.4.2** The method of measurement for the 42-inch RCP shall be on a linear foot basis acceptably installed.
- **8.4.3** The method of measurement for the 24-inch RCP shall be on a linear foot basis acceptably installed. The dissimilar pipe connector shall be incidental to the pipe.
- 8.4.4 The method of measurement for pre-manufactured Storm Manhole shall be per each purchased, installed, and approved by the WVANG. The unit price bid for Storm Manhole shall include the cost for the manhole cover and frame.

8.5 Pay Items

Item 8.1, "Riprap Ditch," per linear foot.

Item 8.2, "42-inch RCP," per linear foot.

Item 8.3, "24-inch RCP," per linear foot.

Item 8.4, "Storm Water Manhole," per each.

Item 8.5, "Headwall," per each.

9.0 FILL MATERIAL

9.1 <u>Description</u>

This work shall consist of excavating, transporting, stockpiling, placing and compacting mine spoil, soil, rock, or other materials encountered in the grading of the highwall, in the preparation of the proposed parking area, in the excavation of borrow area, and any other indicated incidental work. It shall also include the regrading and covering of borrow material areas to eliminate erosion rills and gullies and to establish and promote positive drainage and vegetative cover to these areas.

Work under this item consists of the providing of fill material to the limits, required grade, cross sections and profiles as shown on the Construction Drawings. The primary source of fill material shall be from the removal of rock wall debris along roadway shown on Construction Drawings to the approval of the WVANG. The secondary source of fill material shall be from the excavation for preparation of the proposed parking area and from projected borrow areas.

9.2 Materials

- 9.2.1 Fill material for parking area embankments shall be considered a mixture of any or all of mine spoil, soil, soil cover, and rock. All excavation under this specification shall be classified as "common." Materials to be removed will consist of earth, sediment, mine refuse, loose and fragmented sandstone material, soft or disintegrated shales, and similar materials which can be moved by equipment, up to and including heavy ripping machinery and scaled high wall rock.
 - Soil cover material shall be natural occurring earthen material from potential borrow areas. This material shall be capable of supporting vegetation.
- 9.2.2 Gravel for parking area shall consist of Class 2 crushed stone as defined by WVDOH Standard Specification Section 704.
- 9.2.3 Engineering Fabric for separation between fill material and gravel shall meet the WVDOH Standard Specification 715.11.8.

9.3 Borrow/Disposal Area

Potential soil borrow areas could be needed to construct a fill embankment for a parking area. Potential soil borrow areas have not been identified on the Construction Drawings. However, if off-site borrow/disposal areas should be necessary to provide for material shortages or excess material disposal, then the Contractor is responsible for locating these areas and obtaining right-of-entry agreements in which the property owner indemnifies and holds WVANG harmless from any injury or damage whatsoever resulting from the Contractor's use

Contractor's use of the property. All prospective Contractors and Bidders must obtain their own permission from the landowner for any subsurface tests, borings, or pits. The Contractor shall be held responsible for compliance with all NEPA requirements and shall provide proof of such compliance to the WVANG. The Contractor shall submit a reclamation plan to the WVANG and must obtain approval for said plan prior to any disturbance to the disposal site.

Excavated material may be stockpiled upon approval of the WVANG, if such stockpiling is necessary to the coordination of work, or the material is too wet to permit proper disposal.

9.4 Construction Methods

9.4.1 Excavation

Material excavation shall consist of the required removal of materials from areas shown on the Construction Drawings and from off-site borrow areas approved by the WVANG. Excavated areas shall be finished to the required lines and grades approved by the WVANG. Slopes of finished excavated areas shall be trimmed neatly to present a uniform surface, free from hollows and protrusions and loose or overhanging rocks. The tops of all slopes shall be rounded to form a smooth, uniform transition to the existing ground. Non-rock areas cut to grade (e.g., borrow areas) shall be undercut 1 foot below the final grades shown on the Construction Drawings or approved by the WVANG. Final grades of non-rock areas shall be achieved by filling the final undercut with soil cover material.

The approach described in these construction specifications is intended to provide a lasting, stable configuration. The Contractor is required to exercise care to avoid conditions which may result in unstable conditions during the construction process. The Contractor shall be responsible for protecting the public and their structures from damage.

The Contractor must utilize material removal techniques, which are generally considered to be conducive to retaining slope stability. Additionally, disturbed slopes shall be brought to the design template as soon as practical and shall be protected in accordance with Section 11, "Revegetation."

9.4.2 Scaling (machine) consists of dragging a scaling apparatus suspended from a crane over a slope to remove loose rock, soil, and debris. Contractor shall provide a scaling apparatus consisting of a series of cleated dozer tracks, blasting mats, or similar equipment and provide a crane with sufficient reach and lifting capacity to drag the scaling apparatus up and down the slope. If the equipment and methods do not produce the desired results, the Contractor shall propose and test changes until results are satisfactory.

Before starting, the Contractor shall install a temporary rockfall barrier in the portion of the cut to be scaled. Contractor shall not scale beyond the limits of the rockfall barrier and not allow traffic to pass through the work zone while scaling. Contractor shall protect the pavement with blast mats or other protective systems and repair damaged pavement at no additional cost to the department. The Contractor shall clear the roadway and ditches of rock, and load, haul, and dispose of rock debris to a specified location approved by the WVANG.

The Contractor shall manually scale unstable rock that cannot be removed by machine. During manual scaling, the Contractor shall provide a crew on the slope that consists at all times of a working foreman and two scalers and immediately replace with a foreman or scaler any crew member who leaves. Light mechanical means, such as hydraulic jacks or splitters, may be used to remove unstable rock that cannot be removed by conventional manual methods. Slopes will be inspected to determine whether scaling is complete. If inspection reveals additional hazardous rocks, continue scaling until the WVANG is satisfied.

9.4.3 Material Placement at Parking Area Site

sign to fee

Depositing and compacting fill in layers shall be started at the lowest point in the fill below grade, at the bottom of ravines and at the toe of the slope on side hill fills. Prior to fill placement, existing foundation for the embankment will be proof-rolled and all unsuitable material, as determined by the WVANG, will be removed.

The Contractor shall place the material in level, horizontal lifts, extending over the entire area being filled.

During construction, the top surface of the disposal area shall be sloped with a grade of not less than 2 percent, in order that the fill may freely drain toward the slopes. Sediment control shall be placed around the toe of the slopes as specified in the Construction Drawings and Specifications.

The thickness of the layers before compaction shall not be more than 4 feet. No material placed in the fill area by dumping in piles or windrows shall be incorporated in a layer in that position, but shall be moved and spread by blading or similarly approved methods. All finished grading shall be pleasing in appearance with smooth grades and no abrupt changes or surface irregularities. All completed surfaces shall be tracked or otherwise roughened in preparation for revegetation.

Each lift of material shall be compacted with at least four passes of a dozer that exhibits a minimum ground pressure of 9 psi. Approved equipment includes Caterpillar Model D-6D (maximum track with of 18 inches) and Model D-7G (maximum track width of 22 inches). Other compaction methods may be utilized if approved by the WVANG.

The Contractor shall select and segregate the soil cover from the proposed excavations to place as the top 12 inches of backfill along the surface of borrow areas, and non-graveled areas of the parking area (embankment, etc.). The 12 inches at the top of the backfill will serve as the vegetative layer; therefore, the best soil-like spoil material shall be used in this layer to promote vegetative growth.

Fill materials to be used in any area of an embankment shall be free from trash, debris, frozen soil, organic material or other foreign material.

At the close of each day's work, or when work is to be stopped for a period of time, the entire surface of the compacted fill shall be sealed by a method approved by the WVANG. If, after a prolonged rainfall, the top surface of the embankment is too wet and plastic to work properly, the top material shall be removed to expose firm material. Ruts in the surface of any layer shall be suitably filled or eliminated by grading before compaction. The disturbed areas will be revegetated according to Section 11, "Revegetation."

9.4.4 Engineering Fabric

Engineering Fabric shall be placed in accordance with WVDOH Section 207 in the areas shown on the Construction Drawings.

9.4.5 Gravel

Gravel for access roads and parking areas shall consist of 6 inches of crushed stone in accordance with WVDOH Section 704 and placed in the areas indicated on the Construction Drawings.

9.5 Method of Measurement

9.5.1 The method of measurement for fill material shall be by the cubic yard, which shall be the material actually moved and placed in the proposed parking area designated on the Construction Drawings, measured in its placed location and determined from the certified cross-sections by the method of average end areas. No separate payment will be made for fill placed incidental to the work referred under "Fill Material."

There shall be no measurement of regrading of spoil or refuse areas where there are no cross-sections, as payment for this work shall be incidental to Construction Drawings.

- 9.5.2 The method of measurement for gravel shall be on a per ton basis acceptably installed. Weight tickets shall be submitted as documentation for payment. Tickets shall include the total weight of the truck empty and loaded and the net stone weight, the name of the project, date, and type of stone.
- 9.5.3 The method of measurement for the engineering fabric shall be on a square yard basis acceptably installed.
- 9.5.4 The method of measurement for liming, fertilizing, seeding and mulching soil borrow areas located within the construction limits as addressed in this item is to be included under Section 11.0, "Revegetation," as contained elsewhere in these specifications.

9.6 Basis of Payment

- 9.6.1 Payment for material excavated, transported, and/or backfilled to achieve the final grades will be by the unit price bid for "Fill Material."
- 9.6.2 Payment for gravel transported and placed per WVANG approval to achieve the final grades will be by the unit price bid for "Gravel."
- 9.6.3 Payment for engineering fabric transported and placed per WVANG approval will be by the unit price bid for "Engineering Fabric."

9.7 Pay Item

Item 9.1, "Fill Material," per cubic yard.

Item 9.2, "Gravel," per ton.

Item 9.3, "Engineering Fabric," per square yard.

10.0 CHAIN-LINK FENCING

10.1 Description

Chain-link fencing shall include installing new 6-foot high non-barbed wire fencing and the removal and reinstallation of existing barbed-wire chain-link fencing as shown on the Construction Drawings. The fencing shall be installed along the paved road to the Memorial Tunnel adjacent to the highwall.

10.2 Materials

10.2.1 Definitions

- A. CLFMI: Chain Link Fence Manufacturers Institute.
- B. Zn-5-Al-MM Alloy: Zinc-5 percent aluminum-mischmetal alloy.

10.2.2 Submittals

- A. Product Data: Material descriptions, construction details, dimensions of individual components and profiles, and finishes for the following:
 - 1. Fence, rails, and fittings.
 - 2. Chain-link fabric, reinforcements, and attachments.
- B. Product Certificates: Signed by manufacturers of chain-link fences certifying that products furnished comply with requirements.

10.2.3 Quality Assurance

Installer Qualifications: An experienced installer who has completed chain-link fences similar in material, design, and extent to those indicated for this project and whose work has resulted in construction with a record of successful in-service performance.

Field Measurements: Verify layout information for chain-link fences shown on Construction Drawings in relation to property survey and existing structures. Verify dimensions by field measurements.

Fencing shall be in accordance with Section 712 of WVDOH "Standard Specifications for Roads and Bridges," and as shown on the Construction Drawings.

10.2.4 Material Items

Metal Pipe and Tubing: Galvanized steel. Comply with ASTM F 1083 and ASTM F 1043 for materials and protective coatings.

Frames and Bracing: Fabricate members from galvanized steel tubing with outside dimension and weight according to ASTM F 900 for the following gate fabric height:

Frame Corner Construction: Welded or assembled with corner fittings and 5/16-inch diameter, adjustable truss rods for panels 5 feet wide or wider.

10.2.5 Cast-In-Place Concrete

General: Comply with ACI 301 for cast-in-place concrete.

Materials: Dry-packaged concrete mix complying with ASTM C 387 for normal-weight concrete mixed with potable water according to manufacturer's written instructions.

10.3 Construction Methods

10.3.1 Examination: Contractor shall examine areas and conditions, with Installer present, for compliance with requirements for site clearing, earthwork, pavement work, and other conditions affecting performance.

Contractor shall not begin installation before final grading is completed, unless otherwise permitted by WVANG nor proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.

10.3.2 Preparation

Contractor shall stake locations of fence lines and terminal posts and indicate locations of utilities, lawn sprinkler system, underground structures, benchmarks, and property monuments.

10.3.3 Installation, General

General: Contractor shall install chain-link fencing to comply with ASTM F 567 and in accordance with WVDOH Specifications.

Post Excavation: Contractor shall drill or hand-excavate holes for posts to diameters and spacings indicated, in firm, undisturbed or compacted soil.

Post Setting: Contractor shall hand-excavate holes for post foundations in firm, undisturbed or compacted soil; set posts in concrete footings; protect portion of posts aboveground from concrete splatter; and place concrete around posts and vibrate or tamp for consolidation. Using mechanical devices to set line posts per ASTM F 567 is not permitted. Contractor shall verify that posts are set plumb, aligned, and at correct height and spacing, and hold in position during placement and finishing operations until concrete is sufficiently cured.

- 1. Dimensions and Profile: As indicated on Construction Drawings.
- 2. Exposed Concrete Footings: Contractor shall extend concrete 2 inches above grade, smooth, and shape to shed water.
- 3. Posts Set into Concrete in Sleeves: Contractor shall use steel pipe sleeves preset and anchored into concrete for installing posts. After posts have been inserted into sleeves, Contractor shall fill annular space between post and sleeve with nonshrink, nonmetallic grout, mixed and placed to comply with anchoring material manufacturer's written instructions, and finished sloped to drain water away from post.

10.3.4 Chain-Link Fence Installation

- A. Terminal Posts: Contractor shall locate terminal end, corner, and gate posts per ASTM F 567 and terminal pull posts at changes in horizontal or vertical alignment of 15 degrees or more.
- B. Line Posts: Contractor shall space line posts uniformly at 10 feet o.c.
- C. Post Bracing Assemblies: Contractor shall install post bracing assemblies according to ASTM F 567, maintaining plumb position and alignment of fencing; and install braces at end and gate posts and at both sides of corner and pull posts. Contractor shall locate horizontal braces at midheight of fabric on fences with top rail and at two-thirds fabric height on fences without top rail and install so posts are plumb when diagonal rod is under proper tension.
- D. Tension Wire: Contractor shall install tension wire according to ASTM F 567, maintaining plumb position and alignment of fencing. Contractor shall pull wire taut, without sags; fasten fabric to tension wire with 0.120-inch diameter hog rings of same material and finish as fabric wire, spaced a maximum of 24 inches o.c. Contractor shall install tension wire in locations indicated before stretching fabric.
 - 1. Top Tension Wire: Contractor shall install tension wire through post cap loops.

- 2. Bottom Tension Wire: Contractor shall install tension wire within 6 inches of bottom of fabric and tie to each post with not less than same gage and type of wire.
- E. Top Rail: Contractor shall install top rail according to ASTM F 567, maintaining plumb position and alignment of fencing. Run rail continuously through line post caps, bending to radius for curved runs and terminating into rail end attached to posts or post caps fabricated to receive rail at terminal posts. Contractor shall provide expansion couplings as recommended by fencing manufacturer.
- F. Intermediate Rails: Contractor shall install intermediate rails in one piece at post-height center span, spanning between posts, using fittings, special offset fittings, and accessories.
- G. Chain-Link Fabric: Contractor shall apply fabric to outside of enclosing framework. Leave 1 inch between finish grade or surface and bottom selvage, unless otherwise indicated and pull fabric taut and tie to posts, rails, and tension wires. Anchor to framework so fabric remains under tension after pulling force is released.
- H. Tension or Stretcher Bars: Contractor shall thread through fabric and secure to end, corner, pull, and gate posts with tension bands spaced not more than 15 inches o.c.
- I. Tie Wires: Contractor shall use wire of proper length to firmly secure fabric to line posts and rails, attach wire at one end to chain-link fabric, wrap wire around post a minimum of 180 degrees, and attach other end to chain-link fabric per ASTM F 626. Contractor shall bend ends of wire to minimize hazard to individuals and clothing. Maximum Spacing: Contractor shall tie fabric to line posts 12 inches o.c. and to braces 24 inches o.c.

10.4 Method of Measurement

- 10.4.1 The method of measurement for new chain-link fence shall be on a linear foot basis acceptably installed.
- 10.4.2 The method of measurement for existing chain-link fence shall be on a linear foot basis removed and acceptably reinstalled.

10.5 Basis of Payment

10.5.1 The basis of payment for chain-link fence will be by Unit Price bid for "Chain-Link Fence.

10.5.2 The basis of payment for the Existing Chain-Link Fence will be by Unit Price bid for "Existing Chain-Link Fence with Barbed Wire Removal and Reinstallation of Chain-Link Fence."

10.6 Pay Item

Item 10.1, "Chain-Link Fence," per linear foot.

Item 10.2, "Existing Chain-Link Fence with Barbed Wire Removal and Reinstallation," per linear foot.

11.0 REVEGETATION

11.1 Description

This work shall cover the establishment of vegetation within the limits of construction as shown on the Construction Drawings and any other areas as approved by the WVANG. This work also includes the furnishing and the application of fertilizer, agricultural limestone and mulch and the furnishing and sowing of seed, all in accordance with these Specifications and as designated herein.

No areas outside the limits of construction shall be disturbed without prior approval from the WVANG in order to ensure that Right-of-Entry has been obtained.

Any areas outside the limits of construction, disturbed by the Contractor shall be revegetated by the Contractor at no expense to the WVANG.

11.2 Materials

11.2.1 Fertilizer

The commercial fertilizer to be used shall consist of 10-20-10 grade of uniform composition and furnished in standard containers. These containers, in accordance with applicable state and federal laws, must be clearly marked with the following information:

- a. Weight
- b. Name of Plant Nutrients
- c. Guaranteed Nutrients Percentages

Fertilizer shall be applied at a minimum rate of 1,000 lbs/acre. Fertilizer shall be applied immediately to all areas reaching final grade by one of the two following methods:

- a. Apply and incorporate fertilizer during seedbed preparation.
- b. Apply fertilizer in hydro seeding mixture following seedbed preparation.

11.2.2 Limestone

The lime to be used will be an agricultural grade pulverized limestone containing a minimum of 10% MgCO3 and not less than 75% total carbonates. Fineness will be such that no less than 75% will pass through a #100 sieve and 100% will pass through a #10 sieve.

Lime rate shall be formulated from soil test results. In the absence of soil testing, a rate of five (5) tons per acre will serve as a preferred minimum.

Lime shall be applied immediately to all areas requiring seeding reaching final grade by one of the two methods listed in Section 11.2.1, "Fertilizer."

11.2.3 Seed Mixtures

The variety of grass and legume seed furnished for the project shall bear a tag, in accordance with applicable state and federal laws, with the following information listed:

- 1. Lot Number
- Seed Producers Name
- 3. Percent Purity
- 4. Percent Germination
- 5. Date of Germination Testing
- 6. Weed Seed Content (should be <0.25% by weight)

All leguminous seed shall be inoculated with the specified strain of rhizobia which shall be a pure culture of bacteria selected for maximum vitality. No rhizobia shall be used which has passed the expiration date on each package. The inoculant shall be applied at five times the recommended rate except when used in a hydroseeding mixture when the rate will be ten times the recommended rate.

11.2.3.1 Temporary Seed Mixture

All stockpiles or other disturbed areas which will require further disturbance in which the additional disturbance will be delayed for a period of three (3) weeks or longer shall be vegetated according to the following guidelines.

Temporary Seed Mixtures (Per Acre)

Summer Seeding (July through Augu	ist)	Winter Seeding (November through January)		
German Millet	40 lbs.	Winter wheat	50 lbs.	
		or		
		Cereal Rye	40 lbs.	
		Annual Ryegrass	20 lbs.	
Overseed in the Fall Appropriate Seed M		Overseed in the Spring with Appropriate Seed Mixture		
Fertilizer (per Acre)	10-20-10 600 lbs			

All areas to be temporarily seeded which are to be redisturbed shall be fertilized with 500 lbs/acre of 10-20-10. All areas reaching final grade to be temporarily seeded shall be fertilized according to Section 11.2.1. Lime shall be applied according to Section 11.2.2 and mulched according to Section 11.2.4.

11.2.3.2 Permanent Seed Mixture

1. 18 to 1

Permanent vegetation shall be established on all areas reaching final grade or other areas not likely to be destroyed by further construction activities. Any areas which reach final grade between May 31 - August 15 or October 15 - November 15 shall be seeded with the appropriate temporary seed mixture according to Section 11.2.3.1. These areas shall then be reseeded with a permanent seed mixture, without Annual Ryegrass, during the next defined seeding period according to this section. The actual date of permanent seeding will require the WVANG's approval.

Permanent Seed Mixtures (Per Acre) - Non Lawn Areas

Spring Seeding (February 15 throug		Fall Seeding (August 1 through October 15)		
Annual Ryegrass	20 lbs.	Annual Ryegrass	20 lbs.	
Orchardgrass	20 lbs.	Orchardgrass	20 lbs.	
Red Clover	15 lbs.	Red Clover	15 lbs.	
Birdsfoot Trefoil	15 lbs.	Birdsfoot Trefoil	15 lbs.	
Cereal Rye	30 lbs.	Cereal Rye	0 lbs.	
Winter Wheat	0 lbs.	Winter Wheat	30 lbs.	
Fertilizer (per Acre)	10-20-10 1000 lbs			

^{*}Use only certified "blue tag" seed. Seed-rate suggested is for pure live seed (PLS) in lbs/acre.

11.2.4 Mulch Material

Mulching procedures shall take place immediately following seeding. Mulch material shall consist of straw or wood cellulose fiber.

11.2.4.1 Straw

Straw mulch shall include baled wheat or oats straw, or baled grass hay. Straw mulch shall be dry and reasonably free of weed, seeds, sticks, or other foreign material. Straw mulch shall be applied at a rate of 2 tons/acre. The straw

straw mulch shall be anchored with 100 gallons/acre asphalt emulsion or 750 lbs/acre wood cellulose fiber. However, baled grass hay will not be allowed as mulch for seeding lawn areas.

11.2.4.2 Wood Cellulose Fiber

Wood cellulose fiber may be used only on slopes steeper than 2H:1V at a rate of 1,500 lbs/acre. A mulch for use with the hydraulic application of seed, fertilizer, and lime shall consist of wood cellulose fiber. It shall be processed in such a manner that it will contain no growth or germination inhibiting factors and shall be dyed green. It shall be manufactured in such a manner that (1) after addition and agitation in slurry tanks with fertilizers, lime, seeds, and water, the fibers in the material will become uniformly suspended to form a homogeneous slurry and (2) the material, when hydraulically sprayed on the ground, will form a blotter-like ground cover impregnated uniformly with seed, and will allow rainfall to percolate to the underlying soil. Wood cellulose shall only be used on areas that have been approved by WVANG.

The wood cellulose fiber shall be supplied in packages having a gross weight not to exceed 100 pounds. Weight specifications of this material from suppliers, and for all applications, shall refer only to air dry weight of the fiber material. Air dry weight is based on the normal weight standard of the Technical Association of the Pulp and Paper Industry for Wood Cellulose and is considered equivalent to 10 percent moisture. Each package of the cellulose fiber shall be marked by the manufacturer to show the air dry weight content.

11.2.5 Water

Water shall be reasonably free of injurious and other toxic substances harmful to plant life. The source of water is subject to the approval of the WVANG.

11.3 Construction Methods

- 11.3.1 All revegetation activities shall be conducted immediately following completion of final grading so as to utilize the fine soil material as a seedbed before this material is lost via subsequent rainfall.
- 11.3.2 On sites where appropriate equipment can operate the seedbed shall be prepared by breaking up surface crusts and loosening the soil material to a minimum of three (3) inches. Disking, harrowing, cultipacking or other acceptable tillage operations may be used to prepare the seedbed. On sites where appropriate equipment cannot operate, the seedbed shall be prepared by "tracking in" with a dozer or scarifying by other

other approved methods. Lawn areas are to be hand raked. Rocks larger than six (6) inches in diameter or two (2) inches in diameter in lawn areas, trash, weeds and other debris that will interfere with seeding or maintenance shall be removed or disposed of as approved by the WVANG. Seedbed preparation shall be suspended when soil moisture conditions are not suitable for the preparation of a satisfactory seedbed as determined by WVANG.

- 11.3.3 Seedbed preparation and seeding shall take place progressively as various regraded areas are brought to final grade.
- 11.3.4 All seeding operations shall be performed immediately following seedbed preparation in such a manner that the seed is applied in the specified quantities uniformly on the designated areas.
- 11.3.5 Seed Application shall consist of approved hydroseeding methods where feasible. Any seed left in hydroseeder overnight shall be reinoculated before that seed shall be applied. Other methods of seed application may be utilized for site-specific reasons when approved by the WVANG.
- 11.3.6 Any area failing to establish a vegetative stand due to weather or adverse soil conditions shall be reseeded, relimed, refertilized and remulched as approved by the WVANG.
- 11.3.7 The Contractor shall maintain all seeded areas until final acceptance of the project. All areas shall be protected from any further equipment traffic and any damaged areas shall be repaired and reseeded. Maintaining seeded areas shall consist of watering, refilling, refertilizing, reliming, reseeding, and remulching erosion gullies and all bare areas.
- 11.3.8 A second and third seeding will be applied as needed, or as approved by the WVANG.

11.3.8.1 Second Step Seeding

CO 19 5 5

The second step seeding will take place during the first defined seeding period following the initial seeding. No payment shall be made for second step seeding, this work is part of the contract if completed before the final inspection or shall be considered warranty if completed after the final inspection. The following shall be used as a guide for second step application.

a. For areas with less than a 50 percent stand or subject to severe erosion, apply the complete amount of seed, fertilizer, lime much as specified.

b. For areas with over 50 percent stand apply one half the original fertilizer, lime and seed. If erosion is a problem, apply one half of the original mulch specified in Section 6.2.4.

11.3.8.2 Third Step Seeding

The third step seeding shall consist of spot applications on areas not showing a satisfactory stand. The seeding shall take place at the next defined seeding period following the second step application. The quantity of material to be used shall be determined on the same basis as the second step application in Section 11.3.8.1.

11.4 Method of Measurement

The method of measurement for revegetation shall be per acre.

11.5 Basis of Payment

- 11.5.1 Payment will be made at the Contract unit price bid for these items, which price and payment shall be full compensation for doing all the work herein described in a workmanlike and acceptable manner; including the furnishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment, supplies and incidentals as necessary to complete the work. Payment for seeding includes all seeding (i.e. temporary, first and second seeding). No additional payment will be made for second or third step seeding.
- 11.5.2 Temporary seeding will be incidental to the seeding item and no separate measurement or payment will be made for temporary seeding. There will be no separate payment for maintaining seeded areas. No payment will be made for seeding after the final inspection. All work performed after the final inspection will be done under warranty.

11.6 Pay Items

Item 11.0, "Revegetation," per acre.

دري دان انت

CONTRACTOR'S BID FORM

West Virginia Army National Guard Gallagher Tunnel Stormwater and Slope Erosion Project

CARPENTER RECLAMATION INC.

Item No.	Qua	antity	Description	Unit Price	Amount
1.0	1	LS	Mobilization and Demobilization (Limited to 10% of Total Bid)	\$ 20,000 -00	\$ 20,000.00
3.0	1	LS	Construction Layout Stakes (Limited to 5% of Total Bid)	\$10,000 00	\$ 10,000.00
5.0	1	LS	Site Preparation (Limited to 10% of Total Bid)	\$20,000-00	\$ 20,000.00
6.1	250	LF	Silt Fence	\$ 300	\$ 750.00
6.2	4	EA	Rock Check Dams	\$1,000.00	\$ 4.00000
7.0	640	SY	Rockfall Mesh		\$ 19.200.00
8.1	175	LF	Riprap Ditch	\$ 40.00	\$ 7.000.00
8.2	120	LF	42" RCP	\$ 270.00	\$.32.400.00
8.3	22	LF	24" RCP	\$ 150.00	\$ 3 300.00
8.4	1	EA	72" Diameter Stormwater Manhole		\$60,000.00
8.5	2	EA	Headwall	\$ 4.000.00	\$ 8,000.00
9.1	2,200	CY	Fill Material		\$44,000.00
9.2	240	TN	Gravel	\$ 30.00	\$ 7,200.00
9.3	720	SY	Engineering Fabric	\$ 3.00	\$ 2,160.00
10.1	155	LF	Chain-Link Fence	\$ 50.00	\$7,750.00
10.2	120	LF	Existing Chain-Link Fence w/Barbed Wire Removal and	\$ -	\$ -
			Reinstallation	50.00	6,000,00
11.0	0.5	AC	Revegetation	\$ 4,000.00	
			ТОТ	AL:	\$253,760:00



State of West Virginia Department of Administration Purchasing Division 2019 Washington Street East Post Office Box 50130 Charleston, WV 25305-0130

Request for Quotation

Ť

DEFK9025

ADDRESS CORRESPONDENCE TO ATTENTION OF

304-558-2544

JOHN ABBOTT

DIV ENGINEERING & FACILITIES JOBSITE SEE SPECIFICATIONS

RFQ COPY

MODZE

Carpenter Reclamation P.O. Box 13015 Sissonville WV 25360

DATE PRINTED TERMS OF SA		.E	SHIP	VIA	F.O.B.		FREIGHT TERMS				
05/10/2009									***********		
BID OPENING DATE:		05/21/2009				BID	OPENING TI	OPENING TIME 01:3		30PM	
LINE	QUAN	NTITY	UOP	CAT. NO.	ITEM NÜ	MBER	UNIT PR	ICE	AMOUNT		
	THE OR ANSWER DATE T	IGINAL VENDO O 5/21	REQU R QUE /2009	ISSUE EST F STION , PER	OR QUOTAT S, AND EX	FY, CLA ION SPE TEND TH CHED DO	RIFY, AND CIFICATION E BID OPEN CUMENTATIO	IS, IING			
		·.							N.		
				-							
001		1	LS	,	988-14						
	EROSIOI	N CONT	ROL S	ERVIC	ES		·				
:	****	THIS	IS T	HE EN	D OF RFQ	DEFK9	025 *****	TOTAL:	\$ <u>253,760.</u>	00	
				oee sev	ERSE SIDE FOR T						
GNATURE 1	1. /	I	. [,	OEE MEV	ENOE OUE FUR I			DATE			
TLE \\ \M	lly (appen			-110	304-98			5-21-09		
Presid	dent	/ /	55	-069.	3493		Į.		TO BE NOTED ABOVE		
WHE	EN RESPO	onding t	ORFQ,	INSERT	NAME AND	ADDRESS I	N SPACE ABOV	/E LABELE	D 'VENDOR'		

C&FMO-WVARNG

Pre-Bid Meeting Minutes

Contract: DEFK9025

Storm Water and Slope Erosion project, Gallagher Tunnel, old I77 tunnel

The following constitutes Pre-bid Meeting Minutes for DEFK9025

A pre-bid meeting was conducted at the site for the referenced project at 1330 hrs 28 APR 2009. During the pre-bid meeting, LTC Suver welcomed those present for expressing interest in the subject project. Key Owner representatives where introduced and the following agenda items were covered:

1. ADMINISTRATIVE:

- a. All present contractors signed in.
- b. The project is a federally funded, State administrated project.
- c. The user of the facility will be the West Virginia Army National Guard.
- d. The Administrator of the contract will be the Construction & Facilities Management Office, WVARNG.

2. Introduction:

- a. LTC Suver outlined key personnel associated with the project and address for the office. LTC Suver was introduced as the Administrative Contracting and project manager. Phone numbers and address were identified as follows:
- b.
- i. Address1703 Coonskin DriveCharleston, WV 25311
- ii. LTC Bill Suver Administrative Contracting Officer Bill.suver@wv.ngb.army.mil (304) 561-6454

1) John Abbott is the buyer for State Purchasing Division. All questions must be submitted in writing to Mr. Abbott, who will distribute for resolution. Direct discussion is <u>not</u> authorized with the Engineer, the Facilities Engineer, or the Project Manager. State Wage Rates applies for this project.

Questions will be received no later than May 5th. Direct your questions to Purchasing Division John Abbott (304) 558-2544 or email john.h.abbott@wv.gov

- 2) Bids will use one envelop and include.
 - a. WV Code 21-1D-5 Bidding Contractor's signed affidavit of vendor's compliance with the provisions of article 1d, Chapter 21 of the West Virginia Code.
 - b. Use bid and bid schedule provided
- c. Addenda to address questions will be issued no later than 7 days prior to Bid Opening from the WV Purchasing Division.
- 3. The Designer of Record, Patrick Taylor

Potesta Engineers and Environmental Consultants 7012 MacCorkle Avenue, SE Charleston, West Virginia 25304

(304) 342-1400 phone (304) 343-9031 fax

- 4. LTC Suver discussed security, work hours, and access to the site. The Contractor will have access to the site from 0700 to 1800 hrs, and can arrange to work other hours if required. The Tunnel has a security guard 24/7.
- 5. All construction activities will be in conjunction with OHSA, Safety and Health Requirements Manual (US Army Corps of Engineers). As noted, the Army safety and health standards mirror OHSA. All construction activities on site will be a hardhat area and marked as such. Cleanup is required daily by each perspective sub and General Contractor: No open dumps of construction materials and no burning on site.
- 6. Technical Specifications
 - 1) Reviews Special Provisions.
 - 2) "WVDOT Standard Specifications" shall mean those specifications adopted in 2000 and all-subsequent addenda including the supplemental specifications dated January 1, 2009.
 - 3) No blasting.

- 4) Scope of Work Page 15.
- 5) Item 1.0 "Mobilization and Demobilization" lump sum. Cannot be more than 10% of Total Bid amount.
- 6) Item 2.0 "Utilities" Existing utilities are not exact. Contractor shall be solely responsible to correctly locate all existing active underground and overhead utilities at project site and take precautions to avoid damage to them. Contractor is responsible for contacting Miss Utility prior to construction.
- 7) Item 3.0 "Construction Layout Stakes" Cannot be more than 5% of Total Bid amount.
- 8) Item 5.0 "Site Preparation" Cannot be more than 10% of total bid amount. Note that fencing will be replaced. Separate bid item for removal and reinstallation of existing fencing along roadway. If access road required to obtain access to top of high wall will be reclaimed and restored according to Section 11-"Revegetation".
- 9) Item 6.0 Erosion Sediment Control No NPDES Storm Water Construction Permit or Notice of Intent Required, area of disturbance less than 1 acre. However if borrow area is greater than one acre, Contractor is responsible for complying with Local, State and Federal Laws, including NPDES Storm Water Construction Permit, if required. Contract shall place rock check dams and silt fence where indicated on drawings and use best management practices to make sure the waters of the State are not impacted and as directed by WVANG.
- 10) Item 7.0 "Rock Fall Mesh" Mesh will include area indicated on drawing for bidding. Mesh manufactured by Maccaferri Inc. or equivalent.
- 11) Item 8.0 "Drainage" Engineering fabric for separation between fill material and gravel shall be the **nonwoven** type.
- 12) Item 9.0 "Fill Material" Initial material in parking area shall be the scaled material from the highwall, then from the borrow area.\
 - a. Engineering fabric for separation between fill material and gravel shall be the **woven** type.
 - b. Compaction of fill in parking area consists of lifts compacted at least four passes of a dozer that exhibits a minimum ground pressure of 9 psi no proctor tests required.
- 13) Item 10.0 "Fencing" Note bid item for Removal and Reinstallation of Existing Chain-Link Fence.
- 7. The meeting was opened for Questions by the Contractors. See attached addendum items.
- 8. LTC Suver closed the meeting and thanked the Contractors for their interest in the project. LTC Suver outlined that the meeting notes will be published through state purchasing, along with clarifications to contract documents. Any questions will be addressed through an Addendum released after the question period has closed. It was also stressed that any further questions between now and bid award must be directed to John Abbott at State Purchasing.

ADDENDUM NO. 1

The Center for National Response
Gallagher Tunnel (Old Turnpike/177)
Storm Water and Slope Erosion Project
Kanawha County, West Virginia
No. DEFK9025



TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

- 1. Section 7.0 "Rockfall Mesh" has been replaced to reflect the following changes:
 - a. At least 14 calendar days before starting the work, Contractor shall submit a plan that has been reviewed and sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed and registered in West Virginia and in the field of geotechnical engineering.

Note: Maccaferri does not stamp the design; but usually hires a local engineering firm to do it. The same requirement applies if another rockfall mesh is submitted.

- b. Construction Quality Control has been added. QA/QC services are performed by qualified geotechnical engineers under the direct supervision of a Professional Engineer licensed and registered in the State of West Virginia and in the field of geotechnical engineering.
- 2. Section 12.0 "Audio-Video Color Taping" has been added to the Technical Specifications (see attached).

APRIL 28, 2009 PRE-BID MEETING QUESTIONS

1. How is quantity measured?

For earthwork, before and after cross-sections within the parking lot fill area. Survey information from POTESTA will be made available to the Contractor.

2. If they have to get off-site fill, is it a Change Order.

The off-site source of borrow is part of the bid. The adjacent coal mine as well as another area identified by the WVANG are potential borrow sources.

3. Will off-site borrow are have to be permitted?

The Contractor will be responsible for local, state and federal permits related to the borrow sites (reference Special Provisions Section VII "Borrow (Disposal) Areas"). If the borrow site disturbance is greater than one acre, then an NPDES construction stormwater Notice of Intent (NOI) or permit is required.

4. Erosion and sediment control.

The project's area of disturbance is expected to be less than one acre; therefore, no NPDES Storm Water Construction Permit or Notice of Intent are anticipated. Erosion and sediment control features are indicated on the drawings. Contractor is expected to use best management practices. Additional erosion and sediment control may be needed as directed by the WVANG or through the Contractor's best management practices with approval by the WVANG. These features will either be paid for based on their unit bid prices or as negotiated with the WVANG.

5. Has a rock anchor system been designed.

No. Contractor must provide schedule/plan (reference attached Section 7.0 "Rockfall Mesh" in the May 8, 2009 Addendum No. 1).

6. What happens if Potesta/WVARG rejects rock anchor requirement.

At a minimum, rock anchor requirements for another manufacturer must meet the specified manufacturer's recommendations.

7. More than one vendor?

One listed, but equal allowed.

8. Are gabion tensile strengths outlined?

Reference Section 7.0 "Rockfall Mesh" in the May 8, 2009 Addendum No. 1.

9. How much slope material is cut at the road cut. What is the final slope (e.g., I horizontal: I vertical)?

WVANG must find the cut slope acceptable for stability. There are slope requirements.

10. Protection of the road.

Contractor will leave the road in equal or better condition. There is no bid item for pavement replacement.

11. Is rock netting quantity per drawing adequate?

POTESTA believes that quantity is adequate, but if additional netting is needed, there is a pay item.

12. Does chain link fence go in ditch line?

The chain link fence goes alongside road (reference plan view and detail drawings).

13. Will tunnel be closed down during construction?

Not necessarily. Generally, the road needs to be kept open.

14. Is slough above fence measured?

No. If material falls down it should be hauled to the parking lot fill area and will be included in the excavation.

15. Are pull out tests required on anchors?

Pull out tests will be required for 25 KIPS, one on every five anchors; if one fails the test, all anchors will be tested. Reference 7.0 "Rockfall Mesh" in the May 8, 2009 Addendum No. 1.

16. Will the rock in the existing channel where the storm drain and 42-inch RCP need to be removed?

Yes, rock in existing channel that will be covered by parking area should be removed. It is up to the Contractor to determine whether to reuse it or haul it away. Bedding for 42-inch and 24-inch pipe needs to comply with the Technical Specifications.

17. Is hammering required?

No. Just what can be pulled out with a machine or other method that is not blasting or hammering.

18. Does gate need reinstalled?

Yes.

19. How thick is pavement on road?

Unknown.

QUESTIONS RECEIVED BY DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION PURCHASING DIVISION AFTER THE PRE-BID

- 1. Is the road to borrow pit going to be graveled with crusher run so that we can use itas of now it is not usable for tandem trucks? (This question was asked in the pre bid meeting.)
 - The borrow pit is available to the Contractor if needed. If gravel is required on the road, then the Contractor should figure it in their cost.
- 2. When the project starts will we be able to use entire parking lot for machinery and materials?
 - Location of material stock pile area is shown on the Drawings. Contractor must receive WVANG approval if additional space is required on site for equipment, materials, etc.
- 3. Clarifying question: There is to be no hydraulic hammering by machinery just using the force of the machine buckets to grade slope.
 - Reference Question 18 of pre-bid questions.
- 4. Will the blacktop go from lower gate to upper gate due to the condition of the existing road?
 - The amount of blacktop replacement will depend on what is impacted by the construction.
- 5. Has a permit been obtained to work on the WVDOT Turnpike R/W and to tie into the 24-inch pipe or is that the contractor's responsibility to obtain?
 - The project is on tumpike land. The tumpike has approved the project; therefore, a permit is not anticipated. The Contractor should not figure the cost of a permit in their bid.
- 6. Will the contractor need to develop a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and/or NPDES permit?
 - Reference Question 4 of pre-bid questions.
- 7. Is there an elevation benchmark available on site?
 - POTESTA's survey information, including benchmarks, can be made available to the selected Contractor.

8. Are Sections 3.3.2 & 3.3.3 applicable? There are no existing cross sections to verify and there are no earthwork quantities paid by cubic yard. Does the surveyor need to submit survey records?

Sections 3.3.2 and 3.3.3 are applicable. Existing cross sections are in the Construction Drawings. POTESTA's survey notes can also be made available to the Contractor.

7.0 ROCKFALL MESH

7.1 Description

This section describes the requirements for furnishing and installing anchors and rockfall mesh on finished backslopes.

7.2 Materials

Materials shall be manufactured by Maccaferri Inc. or equivalent in accordance with the following:

- 7.2.1 Wire Rope Anchorage, Galvanized, Rope 3/4-inch Diameter. Steel Core Type 6x19+OWRC (ASTM A 1023 / A 1023M 02) with terminal eyelets, using thimbles and pressed aluminum sleeves.
 - Simple drapery protection with double twist wire mesh type 8x10, wire 0.106-inch diameter brown PVC coated, ASTM A 975.
- 7.2.2 Contractor shall provide wire rope ½ inch [12 mm] in diameter, zinc-coated steel structural wire strand, in accordance with ASTM A 603, class A.
- 7.2.3 Hardware, grout, and associated fittings shall be Maccaferri Inc. recommended or equivalent.

7.3 Construction Methods

- 7.3.1 Before installing mesh, prune shrubs and trees so that mesh will lie flat. The Contractor shall scale backslopes in accordance with Section 9.3.2, Scaling Rock Cuts. The Contractor shall submit copies of the tensile and punching test results along with a sample, 2 ft × 2 ft, of types of rockfall mesh to be used on the project. These samples shall be obtained from a roll of rockfall mesh that is on the project site. At least 14 calendar days before starting the work, Contractor submit a plan that has been reviewed and sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed and registered in West Virginia and in the field of geotechnical engineering for the ground anchors that details the following:
 - 1. The proposed construction sequence and schedule.
 - 2. The proposed drilling methods and equipment.
 - 3. The proposed grout, mix design or specifications, and placement procedures.
 - 4. The proposed anchors, plate, washers and nuts, top support wire rope, wire rope clips, thimbles, and rockfall mesh fasteners, all with specifications, including manufacturers' data sheets.

- 5. Calibration data for each load cell and calibration data for the test jack and master pressure gauges to be used in the work, obtained from calibration tests performed by an independent testing laboratory within 60 calendar days of the submission.
- 6. The proposed stressing procedures and stressing equipment setup. Do not begin installation until the WVANG has approved the submission in writing.
- 7.3.2 Wire mesh and associated wire rope anchorage, horizontal wire rope, wire mesh, and ancillary equipment and grout shall be installed using Maccaferri Inc. or equivalent manufacturer's recommendation.

7.3.3 Construction Quality Control

Rock slope stabilization construction activities are subject to Quality Assurance, Quality Control (QA/QC) observation. Therefore, QA/QC services are performed by qualified geotechnical engineers under the direct supervision of a Professional Engineer licensed and registered in the State of West Virginia and in the field of geotechnical engineering.

Rock and Soil Anchors: Anchors shall have a minimum pullout strength of 25 kips (111 kN) (or more if required by specific manufacturer fence design) and must be verified by the Contractor in the field. The testing shall consist of a pullout test incorporating 20 percent of the total number of anchors with locations chosen by the Engineer. If more than 25 percent of the anchors tested fail, all anchors shall be tested. Failed anchors shall be replaced by the contractor at no additional cost to the owner.

Hardware like shackles, drop forged wire rope clips and thimbles shall be installed as per the manufacturer recommendation with the appropriate spacing and torque. The wire mesh fasteners spacing during all phases of installation shall be in accordance with spacing based on 1,400 lb/ft (20.4 kN/m) pull apart resistance for galvanized mesh when tested in accordance with ASTM A975 Section 13.1.2, with a nominal spacing of 4 inches (100 mm), and not to exceed 6 inches (150 mm).

7.4 Method of Measurement

The method of measurement for Rockfall Mesh installation shall be by the square yard acceptably installed. No separate payment shall be made for anchors, lacing and fasteners, grout and any other hardware used. These are considered incidental to the installation of the Rockfall Mesh.

7.5 Basis of Payment

Payment for acceptable installation of Rockfall Mesh will be by the Unit Price bid for "Rockfall Mesh."

7.6 Pay Item

Item 7.0, "Rockfall Mesh," per square yard.

12.0 AUDIO-VIDEO COLOR TAPING

12.1 Description

12.1.1 Sequence of Work

Upon receipt of the Notice to Proceed, and prior to starting any construction activities, the Contractor shall complete an audio-video recording (taping) of portions of the project along the pipe centerlines as directed by the WVANG and as specified herein.

12.1.2 Visual Inspection

Prior to audio-video color taping of the project, all areas to be taped shall be investigated visually with notation made of features not readily visible by taping methods.

This would include, but not be limited to, culverts (size, type, condition, etc.), manholes, etc., that may be partially buried. Record all measurements made during the inspection.

12.1.3 Approvals

All taping shall be conducted in the presence of the WVANG unless waived by the WVANG.

No construction may begin until all audio-video/taping has been conducted and the tape has been submitted to the WVANG for approval.

12.1.4 Certification

Upon completion of the taping work, the Contractor shall provide certification in writing to the WVANG that all the requirements of the Audio-Video Color Taping for this project were accomplished in accordance with these specifications.

12.2 Equipment

- 12.2.1 The color visual/audio recording device used shall be approved by the WVANG prior to recording.
- 12.2.2 The video tape or DVD or other medium used for the recording shall be new and thus shall not have been used for any previous recordings.

12.2.3 The following shall be submitted for approval prior to start of taping:

 Name, make and model number of audio/video recording device. Type of medium.

12.3 Execution Methods

12.3.1 Job Recording Conditions

- A. All taping shall be done in times of good visibility. No outside taping shall be done during periods of visible precipitation or when the ground area is covered with snow, leaves, or debris unless otherwise authorized by the WVANG.
- B. In order to produce the proper detail and perspective, adequate auxiliary lighting will be required to fill in shadow areas caused by trees, utility poles, road signs, and other such objects, as well as other conditions requiring artificial illumination. The Contractor shall furnish all power required for lighting.
- C. Panning rates and zoom-in, zoom-out rates shall be controlled sufficiently such that playback will produce adequate clarity of the objects being viewed.
- D. Coverage shall be obtained by walking or by special conveyance, but with the same requirements for tape quality and content as specified herein.

12.3.2 Coverage Requirements

- A. Taped coverage shall include, but not be limited to, all existing driveways, sidewalks, curbs, ditches (draining patterns are of particular concern), streets including condition of paving for full width, landscaping, trees, culverts, catch basins, headwalls, fences, visible utilities, and all building exteriors located within the zone of influence on construction. Of particular concern are existing faults, fractures, defects or other imperfections.
- B. All audio/video taping shall consist of original live recordings and, thus, shall not be copies of other audio or video equipment.
- C. All recording medium (cassettes and cases) shall be property identified by medium number, location and project name under the direction of the WVANG or person approved by the WVANG.
- D. Under the direction of the WVANG or an audio supervisor approved by the WVANG, each tape shall begin with the current date, project name and be

followed by the general location, i.e., name of the street or property Owner, location or "cross county" line, viewing side and direction of progress.

E. During the entire duration of each video tape recording, the date, consisting of month, day and year, and the time, consisting of hours and minutes.

12.3.3 Quality Assurance

The total audio-video recording system and the procedures employed in its use shall be such as to produce a finished product that will fulfill the technical requirements of the project, as well as those more subjective requirements of high quality audio and video production. The video portion of the recording shall reproduce right, sharp, clear pictures with accurate colors and shall be free from distortion, tearing, rolls or any other form of picture imperfection. The audio portion of the recording shall reproduce the commentary of the camera operator with proper volume, clarity and be free from distortion. The recording system shall utilize EIA Standard Video and NTSC Compatible Color (American TV Standard).

12.3.4 The following shall be submitted to the WVANG after completion of the work:

A record of the contents of each tape shall be supplied on a run sheet, identifying each segment in the tape by location, i.e., street or easement viewing side, traveling direction, engineering stationing, and all referenced by type counter numbers.

A brief report and inventory of all tapes completed, referenced by location and tape number, shall be furnished to the WVANG upon completion of the work and delivery of the tapes. All tapes and written records shall be turned over to and become the property of the WVANG.

12.4 Method of Measurement

The method of measurement for determining the quantity of Audio-Video Color Taping done as described above will be incidental to the overall project cost.

12.5 Basis of Payment

The quantity of audio-video color taping work done will be incidental to the overall project amount.

12.6 Pay Item

No Pay Item. Audio-video color taping is incidental to the project cost.

16

SIGN-IN SHEET

Project No. 0101-08-0283

Pre-Bid Meeting for West Virginia Army National Guard - Gallagher Tunnel Stormwater and Slope Erosion Project Pre-Bid Date and Time: April 28, 2009 at 1:30 PM

		1			 	 			
in in the contract	Peruylo Coptestancan	John @ Lynd, Caust-	4009 - 100 Mar 7	TCN ON MI POTESTACO			,		
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	150p-645 (405)	7516-765 (408)	,, 2/ +3	(506-546 (108)					
- Phoneskimuber	(304) 342-1400	1(304)536-1890	11 4 11	Maccaffelo Per (324) 392-140 (304) 343-903)					
SSUIJV/	70) 2 Mucanthe Aver (304) 342-1400 (304) 343-9031	' √	78342	3612 Maccafeloren					
CompanyName	Potestad Assa.	Lynch Coust (B. Inc.	1 2 2 11	Terring Man Potestal ASSOC 36,2					
Altendellame	Pat Taylor	WIES A. Thompson	John L. Lyuch	Teveloce Much					

PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LE	PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LEAVE A BUSINESS CARD - CORRECTIONS - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM	- 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM
FIRM & REPRESENTATIVE NAME	MAILING ADDRESS	TELEPHONE & FAX NUMBERS
Company: Orders Construction Co Rep. Note Orders	PO Box 1448. St. Albans WN 25177	PHONE 304-722-4237 TOLL FREE
Address: Nate Ocorders Constr	ncflow. Com	FAX 722-4230
Company: THG Services, Inc. Rep: Matthew Ford	240 Oliver St. Swite 1 St. Albans W 25177	PHONE 304-712-6015 TOLL FREE
Ą		FAX 304-722-6017
Company: CHAPMAN - MARTIN SKR. Rep: 13 12 SETLIFF	RO Box 4385 5101 JAWES R. RO	PHONE <i>304-429-2434</i> TOLL FREE
Email Address:	Hummaspans Will 252001-0385	FAX 304-429-8235
Сотрапу <u>:</u> Rep:		PHONE TOLL FREE
Email Address:		FAX
Company: Rep:		PHONE TOLL FREE
Email Address:		FAX

PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LE	PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LEAVE A BUSINESS CARD - CORRECTIONS - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM	S - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM
FIRM & REPRESENTATIVE NAME	MAILING ADDRESS	TELEPHONE & FAX NUMBERS
Company: GREEN MOUNTHING	511 50th STREET	PHONE 304 925 2253
Rep: DAVI A H. BowmAN	Chus WJ 25304	FREE 304 925 4043
Email Address: Jody May Chol. Con		FAX JOAN Mayetter Co
Company: CowGIRL MP INC	Pobox + 343	PHONE 304-789-4897
Rep: Lewis C. Elban	SIMPSON WU 26435	FREE
Email Address: QC G - CowqIRLYP & EARTHUMK.NGT	-	FAX 304-739-440)
Company:		PHONE
Rep:		TOLL FREE
Email Address:		FAX
Company:		PHONE TOLL
Rep:		FREE
Email Address:		FAX
Сотрапу:		PHONE
Rep:		FREE
Email Address:		FAX

PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LEAVE A BUSINESS CARD - CORRECTIONS - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM	E A BUSINESS CARD - CORRECTIONS	S - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM
FIRM & REPRESENTATIVE NAME	MAILING ADDRESS	TELEPHONE & FAX NUMBERS
Company: Bill Swell MVRPMG.		PHONE 30% 56/6954 TOLL FREE
Email Address:		FAX
Company: WYARNG - CNR Rep: DAVID MEMILAND 12		PHONE 384-561-6868 TOLL FREE
Email Address:		FAX
Company: Azimuth Inc Rep: Wight Semiaczko		PHONE 304-561-6854 TOLL FREE
Email Address: dulight. Sie mig czk @ 12. army. mil		FAX
Company:		PHONE TOLL FREE
Email Address:		FAX
Company:		PHONE TOLL FREE
Email Address:		FAX

PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LEAV	E LEAVE A BUSINESS CARD - CORRECTIONS - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM	- 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM
FIRM & REPRESENTATIVE NAME	MAILING ADDRESS	TELEPHONE & FAX NUMBERS
company: Dan hill Const. Co.	P.O. Box 685	PHONE 304-632-1600
Rep:	Gauler Baidse, Wila	TOLL . FREE
Address:		FAX 304-632-1501.
Company: (Signerial Const Ca.	80 By 243	PHONE 304-442.5525
Rep: Steve Giannini	Smithers Bridge wr 25186	FREE
Email Address: Kim Becly lo 7 at Sudden Link. net		FAX CO4-447-5525
Company:		PHONE
Rep:		I OLL FREE
Еmail Address:		FAX
Company:		PHONE
Rep:		FREE
Email Address:		FAX
Company:		PHONE
Rep:		FREE
Email Address:		FAX

Page of

SIGN IN SHEET

PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LEAVE A BUSINESS CARD - CORRECTIONS - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM	- 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM
FIRM & REPRESENTATIVE NAME	TELEPHONE & FAX NUMBERS
Commany Agreem 18 Ex country of Trad fin 8.0. Box 398	304 585 7660
	FREE 585-7063
ey Construction / Rosley Ave.	PHONE 422-0025 TOLL 1-800, 253-4285
Rep: Klan Worley	FAX 304 422-0414
Company:	PHONE TOLL
Rep:	FREE
Email Address:	FAX
Company:	PHONE
Rep:	FREE
Email Address:	FAX
Company:	PHONE TOLL
Rep:	FREE
Email Address:	FAX

PRE-BID SIGN- IN SHEET / PLEASE LEAVE A BUSINESS CARD - CORRECTIONS - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM	S - 2/18/2009; 10:30 AM
FIRM & REPRESENTATIVE NAME	TELEPHONE & FAX NUMBERS
Jany:	PHONE 30 % %% 11/5 TOLL FREE
Email Address: 25 560	FAX 304 984-2770
er Esons Inc	PHONE 304 744 0590
Rep: Allen Marker Sons @ADL, COM 35309 Email Address: GR Marker Sons @ADL, COM 35309	FAX 3104 746-5203
Company: Rep:	PHONE TOLL FREE
Email Address:	FAX
Company <u>:</u> Rep:	PHONE TOLL FREE
Email Address:	FAX
Company:	PHONE TOLL FREE
Rep. Email Address:	FAX

Agency		
REQ.P.O#	DEFK9025	

BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, TI	hat we, the undersigned, <u>Carpenter Reclamation</u> , Inc
of PO Box 13015 Sissonville, WV 2536	no gas Principal, and Western Surety Company
	urgh, PA a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
South Dakota with its principal office in the City of	Sioux Falls, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the State
of West Virginia, as Obligee, in the penal sum of Five	Percent (\$ 5%) for the payment of which
	dourselves, our heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns.
	that whereas the Principal has submitted to the Purchasing Section of the
	I, attached hereto and made a part hereof, to enter into a contract in writing for epair, Gallagher Tunnel, in Kanawha County, West Virginia, according
to plans and specifications.	
NOW THEREFORE,	
(a) If said bid shall be rejected, or	
hereto and shall furnish any other bonds and insurance agreement created by the acceptance of said bid, then	cipal shall enter into a contract in accordance with the bid or proposal attached e required by the bid or proposal, and shall in all other respects perform the n this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise this obligation shall remain in ful d that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no even tated
Should the policy amount of this obligation at his one of	lated.
The Surety, for the value received, hereby stip way impaired or affected by any extension of the time value notice of any such extension.	pulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in no within which the Obligee may accept such bid, and said Surety does hereby
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Principal and Suret	ty have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as are corporation
	ito and these presents to be signed by their proper officers, this
18th day of May , 20 09	
Principal Corporate Seal	Carpenter Reclamation
	(Name of Principal)
	By Kelley Carpenter
	Kollov Carpentakviusi De President or
	Nelley Calpering Vice President)
•	President
	(Title)
Surety Corporate Seal	Western Surety Company (Name of Surety)
	Grei Da McCormich
	Sheila McCormick Attorney-in-Fact

IMPORTANT – Surety executing bonds must be licensed in West Virginia to transact surety insurance. Corporate seals must be affixed, and a power of attorney must be attached.

Western Surety Company

POWER OF ATTORNEY APPOINTING INDIVIDUAL ATTORNEY-IN-FACT

Know All Men By These Presents, That WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a South Dakota corporation, is a duly organized and existing corporation having its principal office in the City of Sioux Falls, and State of South Dakota, and that it does by virtue of the signature and seal herein affixed hereby make, constitute and appoint

Ross E Johnson, Beverly A Holstine, Kathryn K Arthur, Sheila Mc Cormick, Individually

of Charleston, WV, its true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact with full power and authority hereby conferred to sign, seal and execute for and on its behalf bonds, undertakings and other obligatory instruments of similar nature

- In Unlimited Amounts -

and to bind it thereby as fully and to the same extent as if such instruments were signed by a duly authorized officer of the corporation and all the acts of said Attorney, pursuant to the authority hereby given, are hereby ratified and confirmed.

This Power of Attorney is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the By-Law printed on the reverse hereof, duly adopted, as indicated, by the shareholders of the corporation.

In Witness Whereof, WESTERN SURETY COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed by its Senior Vice President and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed on this 25th day of April, 2008.

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

State of South Dakota County of Minnehaha

s

On this 25th day of April, 2008, before me personally came Paul T. Bruflat, to me known, who, being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: that he resides in the City of Sioux Falls, State of South Dakota; that he is the Senior Vice President of WESTERN SURETY COMPANY described in and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to the said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed pursuant to authority given by the Board of Directors of said corporation and that he signed his name thereto pursuant to like authority, and acknowledges same to be the act and deed of said corporation.

My commission expires

November 30, 2012



CERTIFICATE

Lea Frell, Notary Public

I, L. Nelson, Assistant Secretary of WESTERN SURETY COMPANY do hereby certify that the Power of Attorney hereinabove set forth is still in force, and further certify that the By-Law of the corporation printed on the reverse hereof is still in force. In testimony whereof I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of the said corporation this 18th day of May 2009



WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

J. Relson, Assistant Secretary

Authorizing By-Law

ADOPTED BY THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WESTERN SURETY COMPANY

This Power of Attorney is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the following By-Law duly adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

Section 7. All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney, or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate name of the Company by the President, Secretary, and Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other officers as the Board of Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may appoint Attorneys in Fact or agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies, or undertakings in the name of the Company. The corporate seal is not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation. The signature of any such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile.



State of West Virginia DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CONFORMANCE AFFIDAVIT West Virginia Code §21-1D-5

STATE OF WEST Virginia
COUNTY OF Kanawha, TO-WIT:
I, <u>kelley Carpenter</u> , after being first duly sworn, depose and state as follows: 1. I am an employee of <u>arpenter keclamatics suc</u> ; and, (Company Name) 2. I do hereby attest that <u>arpenter keclamatics suc</u> . (Company Name) maintains a valid written drug free workplace policy and that such
policy is in compliance with West Virginia Code §21-1D-5.
The above statements are sworn to under the penalty of perjury. (Company Name) By: Kelly Caspenter
Title: President
Date: 5-21-09 MAY
Taken, subscribed and sworn to before me this <u>21</u> day of <u>2009</u> .
By Commission expires June 4, 2017
OFFICIAL SEAL Notary Public, State Of West Virginia NICHOLE BEARY P.O. Box 13194 Sissonville, WV 25360 My Commission Expires June 4, 2017
THIS AFFIDAVIT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BID IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH WV CODE PROVISIONS. FAILURE TO INCLUDE THE
AFFIDAVIT WITH THE BID SHALL RESULT IN DISQUALIFICATION OF
THE BID. Rev March 2009

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA Purchasing Division

PURCHASING AFFIDAVIT

VENDOR OWING A DEBT TO THE STATE:

West Virginia Code §5A-3-10a provides that: No contract or renewal of any contract may be awarded by the state or any of its political subdivisions to any vendor or prospective vendor when the vendor or prospective vendor or a related party to the vendor or prospective vendor is a debtor and the debt owed is an amount greater than one thousand dollars in the aggregate.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACTS & DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ACT:

If this is a solicitation for a public improvement construction contract, the vendor, by its signature below, affirms that it has a written plan for a drug-free workplace policy in compliance with Article 1D, Chapter 21 of the West Virginia Code. The vendor must make said affirmation with its bid submission. Further, public improvement construction contract may not be awarded to a vendor who does not have a written plan for a drug-free workplace policy in compliance with Article 1D, Chapter 21 of the West Virginia Code and who has not submitted that plan to the appropriate contracting authority in timely fashion. For a vendor who is a subcontractor, compliance with Section 5, Article 1D, Chapter 21 of the West Virginia Code may take place before their work on the public improvement is begun.

ANTITRUST:

101 270

In submitting a bid to any agency for the state of West Virginia, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted the bidder will convey, sell, assign or transfer to the state of West Virginia all rights, title and interest in and to all causes of action it may now or hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States and the state of West Virginia for price fixing and/or unreasonable restraints of trade relating to the particular commodities or services purchased or acquired by the state of West Virginia. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing agency tenders the initial payment to the bidder.

I certify that this bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, limited liability company, partnership or person or entity submitting a bid for the same materials, supplies, equipment or services and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. I further certify that I am authorized to sign the certification on behalf of the bidder or this bid.

LICENSING:

Vendors must be licensed and in good standing in accordance with any and all state and local laws and requirements by any state or local agency of West Virginia, including, but not limited to, the West Virginia Secretary of State's Office, the West Virginia Tax Department, West Virginia Insurance Commission, or any other state agencies or political subdivision. Furthermore, the vendor must provide all necessary releases to obtain information to enable the Director or spending unit to verify that the vendor is licensed and in good standing with the above entities.

CONFIDENTIALITY:

The vendor agrees that he or she will not disclose to anyone, directly or indirectly, any such personally identifiable information or other confidential information gained from the agency, unless the individual who is the subject of the information consents to the disclosure in writing or the disclosure is made pursuant to the agency's policies, procedures and rules. Vendor further agrees to comply with the Confidentiality Policies and Information Security Accountability Requirements, set forth in http://www.state.wv.us/admin/purchase/privacy/ noticeConfidentiality.pdf.

Under penalty of law for false swearing (West Virginia Code §	61-5-3), it is hereby certified that the vendor
affirms and acknowledges the information in this affidavit and is in	n compliance with the requirements as stated.
Vendor's Name: <u>Carpenter Keclamation</u>	lue.
Authorized Signature: Kelley Compenter	Date: <u>5-21-09</u>
Purchasing Affidavit (Revised 01/01/09)	